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About fastjet Group
Our History

fastjet is @ multi-award-winning African airline Group that began flight operations in November 2012 with its first
airline, fastjet Tanzania. The airline launched, flying passengers from its hub in Dar es Salaam to two domestic
destinations, Kilimanjare and Mwanza, and over the years the route network expanded to include additional
domestic and regional destinations.

In 2015, fastjet Zimbabwe commenced operations, flying from Harare to domestic destinations, which was
followed by the expansion with regional flights to South Africa.

In November 2017, fastjet Mozambique was established as the third group airline. With flights operated by
Solenta Aviation Mozambique, fastjet branded flights commenced between Maputo and Beira, Nampula and
Tete.

In October 2018, the fastjet Group purchased federal Airlines {Proprietary) Limited ("FedAir”) via its subsidiary,
Parrot Aviation (Proprietary) Limited (“Parrot”). FedAir is one of the most multi-faceted aviation companies in
South Africa, having innovated the service of flying guest shuttles to some of Africa’s most stunning luxury safari
lodges in the 1990s. FedAir has since partnered with world leaders in tuxury safari experiences as part of their
commitment to raise the bar in bespoke aviation. As a result, FedAir has become renowned for delivering a
unique and seamless travel experience unparalleled on the market. There are two aspects to FedAir's offering:
firstly, it offers daily customized shuttle services to fuxury safari fodges and secondly, it provides full charter
services.

In quarter four of 2019, FedAir added a third dynamic to its service offering, when it began operating aircraft,
maintenance, insurance and crew ("ACMI”) services for fastjet Zimbabwe using one Embraer ERJ145 aircraft. This
provided FedAir with the opportunity to gain both valuable scheduled airline network and Embraer ERJ145

operating experience.

As fastjet gained operational experience in East and Southern Africa markets, its strategies evolved, as is common
with developing businesses. This led, inter alia, to the fastjet Group divesting from its first business, fastjet
Tanzanig, on 26 Novernber 2018.

Also, in October 2019, fastjet Mozambique suspended operations. The entry to the country by another
competitor, Ethiopian Airlines Mozambique, in December 2018, resulted in excess available capacity which
placed unsustainable pressure on fastjet Mozambique’s capital and cash flow.

Today the fastjet Group operates two airlines: firstly, fastjet Zimbabwe, domestically in Zimbabwe and
internationally between Zimbabwe and South Africa, and FedAir, in South Africa.

To date, the Group airlines have flown over 4 miliion domestic and international passengers with an impressive
aggregate on-time performance, establishing a reputation as a punctual, reliable, and affordable value airline
offering, with inclusive and compiementary services to all customers.
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OQur History {continued)

The Group’s long-term goal! is to operate a successful pan-African fastjet franchise and airline management
services business, with ownership in viable and cash generative airline operations over time.

The Group remains committed to continue holding its investments in the airline, shuttle and charter operations
of the FedAir and the fastjet Zimbabwe businesses.

At the time of this report, the COVID-19 is no longer a significant risk to the business with travel restrictions
removed in almost every part of the world.

During 2022, the Group managed to return to business as usual and this resulted in the Group managing to
achieve performance higher than preCOVID-19.

fastjet’s Vision

“To be a successful pan-African value airline operation, brand and franchise.”

To provide affordable air transportation in all economically viable African markets.

Our Corporate Culture

fastjet has an open and collaborative culture which is underpinned by core values and behaviours:

+ Safety: Uncompromising on safety and security. Best practices benchmarked against global aviation
standards.

= Integrity: Approaching everything we do with respect, honesty and integrity. Embracing the diversity
amongst our colleagues and customers.

* Innovation: Thinking of new and creative ways in pursuit of innovation. Developing oppoertunities and
solutions for aur customers, colleagues and stakeholders.

Passion: Sharing our passion for Africa and delivering value to our customers with affordable air travel
and positive service experience.

* Continual Improvement: Encouraging all employees to find ways of continually innovating and
improving small areas of the business and systems, and in the way we operate, and simplification of the
things we do. As we continupusly improve something small daily, we build stronger foundations and
ways of doing business and find efficiencies, allowing ease of use and deployment and a clear
understanding amongst every one of the things that matter.
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Qur Awards
LNV ;
> o Africa’s Leading Low - Cost Airline
: ’ . 2016 - winner
P * 2017 - winner

. 2018 - winner
. 2019 - winner
. 2020 - winner
. 2021 - winner

Best LCC in Africa

‘ . . 2017 - winner

,74‘4 “‘"g.,:s . 2018 - runner up
Thps T s 2019 - winner

. 2021 - top ten finalist
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fastjet Zimbabwe Route Network
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FedAir Route Network
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Chairman’s Statement

Rashid Wally, Chairman

To the stakeholders of fastjet Limited and its subsidiaries

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present to you the annual report of fastjet Limited and its
subsidiary undertakings (“the Group”}.

The year under review

2022 saw an increase in economic activities around the globe, as containment measures for the COVID - 19
pandemic were progressively refaxed and daily new infections trended downwards. The measures and sacrifices
of our stakeholders during the last two years are starting to bear fruits.

With the increase in econemic activities, it is with great pleasure to report that the year 2022, was an excellent
year for the Group as it is reporting its first ever operational profits. The continuing cperations of the Group
reported a profit of US$10.7m (2021: US54.3m) and operating profits, excluding the other income, of US$2.2m
(2021: US$8.1m loss). fastjet Zimbabwe reported a profit of US$2.9m (2021: US54.3m loss) and FedAir reported
a profit of US$1.3m {USS$0.8m loss) and Central {which comprise of fastjet Limited and Parrot) reported a profit
of USS6.5m (2021: USS0.8m}. The profit for the Group is also attributable to favourable change in recoverability
of the Legacy Loan facility.

On 16 March 2022, fastjet Zimbabwe launched flights between South Africa Mbombela Kruger International
Airport and Zimbabwe’s tourist capital, Victoria Falis. On 30 June 2022, fastjet Zimbabwe launched a new route,
four times a week connecting Victoria Fails in Zimbabwe and Maun in Botswana. fastjet Zimbabwe started
participating in the Airline Reporting Corporation (“ARC") in the USA, giving fastjet reach to all USA based travel
agents. Additional agreements have been entered into with tour aperators to increase the reach of fastjet and
FedAir. Tour Operators and Destination Management Companies (“DMC”) who ieft FedAir between 2017 and
2020 returned during 2022. With the increase in operations, FedAir purchased from Airlink {Pty) Ltd one Cessna
Grand Caravan EX in September 2022. FedAir also entered into three new lease agreements for the lease of
aircraft during 2022 to cater for the increase in demand.

Global ctisis and its effects on the Group

At the time of this report, the COVID - 19 is no longer a significant risk to the business with travel restrictions
removed in almost every part of the world.

The future

| remain optimistic that with the strategies and operating plans in place, fastjet has built a solid foundation to
grow. FedAir, as an example, allows fastjet to set up scheduled airline operations and grow our brand presence
further in South Africa, in future years.
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Chairman’s Statement {continued)

Appreciation and thank you to the entire team and our shareholders

In conclusion, ta our executive management team, our in-country management and all employees of the fastjet
Group companies, | would {ike to say thank you for their tremendaus efforts, commitment and hard work.

To our valued and loyal customers, and all our suppliers, your dedication and commitment to the fastjet business
is well treasured and appreciated.

To our shareholders, we thank you for your continued support and totat commitment to the business and our
future through chalienging times.

A
Rashid Wally
Chairman

16 August 2023
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

The year 2022 started with cautious expectations in the Southern African region following travel restrictions
imposed in December 2021 to contain the Dmicron variant. The start of the conflict between Russia and Ukraine
contributed to the gloom of the first quarter. However, the desire to travel after almost two years of restrictions
far outweighed those considerations as both fastjet Zimbabwe and FedAir started to experience a significant
increase in passenger numbers as from the second quarter. The loads and yields experienced in 2022 were the
best ever since the inception of fastjet and fastjet Zimbabwe has recorded an operating profit for the first time
in its history.

fastjet Zimbabwe was able to respond guickly to the unannounced increase in passenger numbers by deploying
all its equipment and accessing other aircraft on a wet lease or charter basis at short notice. Frequencies were
increased especially on the Johannesburg Victoria Falls route where fastjet was the only carrier flying
internationally for almost half of the year.

FedAir is the premier South African air service provider to the remote luxury lodges in the Kruger National Park
and surrounding areas. Following the removal of travel restrictions which were gradually lifted as from April with
full restrictions removed in Q2-2022; thus prompting the resumption of connecting flights from FedAir's main
markets. FedAir capitalised on the recovery compounded by the exit of some of its competitors thus experiencing
a better perfarmance than 2019. To deliver on this better-than-expected return to normal FedAir placed an order
to acquire six brand new Caravan EX with delivery scheduled in April and June 2023 latest. An agreement was
reached with Airlink to absorb their Lodgelink operations and purchase a Caravan EX in September 2022, Fedair
also entered a sale and leaseback transaction of its two existing Caravans.

Zimbabwe

The Monetary Policy Statement issued on 20 February 2019 stopped recognizing the US$: ZWL exchange rate of
1:1. In doing so the local currency (“RTGS” or “ZWL”) was effectively devalued and a floating rate was introduced
with the prevailing rate at ZWL2.5; US51.0 at that time. To mitigate the effects of the devaluation and foreign
obligations under the previous rate the RBZ advised the market that foreign liabilities and legacy debts were to
be treated separately after registering such transacticns with Exchange Control. Exchange Control Directive RU
28 of 2019 issued on 22 February 2019 was issued to this effect. On the 24th of june 2019, the Government
issued Statutory Instrument 142 (S| 142) which was followed up by Exchange Control Directive RU/102 of
2019.These exchange control pelicies directed authorised dealers to transfer to the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe
{“RBZ"), Zimbabwe Dollar balances at an exchange rate of ZWL1:US51 in relation to foreign currency legacy debts
once registered with the RBZ.

The Company secured approval in 2020 from RBZ to register certain historic Group intercompany loans made to
fastjet Zimbabwe Limited (“fastjet Zimbabwe") with a value of US522.5m as a legacy loan {the “Legacy Loan”)
and a further US52.7m of Company creditors in Zimbabwe as blocked creditor funds. The Legacy Loan balance
forms part of the total Group intercompany loan funding to fastjet Zimbabwe since it first started operations,
but none of the loans had formaliy been registered with the RBZ beforehand. These approvals with the RBZ are
recognition from the RBZ that the loans were effected under the prior 1:1 currency regime towards investment
and continued support of the Company’s operations in Zimbabwe. While the Company is awaiting the final
position from the RBZ on the next steps to expunge balances under the Legacy Loan, the RBZ has allowed the
Company to draw against the Legacy Lean in ZWL currency (Zimbabwe local currency) to settle fastjet Zimbabwe
creditors of USS8.7m at 31 December 2022 (2021: U5$21.7m}. The legacy debt facility has been fully drawn as
at 31 December 2022.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement {continued)

Revenue of fastjet Zimbabwe for the year ended 31 December 2022 increased significantly to US$50.0m (2021:
USS22.6m). This is higher than the pre - COVID -19 levels which was at US$25.2m for 2019. There were limited
flight restrictions in 2022. fastjet Zimbabwe reported a profit of US52.9m. Jehannesburg — Victeria Falls route
contributed significantly to this increase in revenue with fastjet Zimbabwe having aimost three frequencies daily
during peak periods where it was the only carrier operating on this route for a significant part of the year. Kruger
Mpumalanga-Victoria Falis route and Maun-Victoria Falls route were also launched during the year
complementing further our leisure routes offering to the travel trade.

fastjet Zimbabwe is a well-known and prominent brand in Zimbabwe. in 2022, fastjet Zimbabwe carried 273,821
passengers {2021: 153,141) on 7,298 flights {2021: 4,939), with an average load factor of 77%, an increase from
a prior year average of 64%. The revenue per passenger improved by 32% from US55138 in 2021 to US5183 in
2022.

fastjet Zimbabwe’s operations accounted for 78% of continuing revenue in the full year 2022 [2021: 80%). The
operation remains sensitive to currency volatility and the frequently changing and very unpredictable local
environment that exists daily in Zimbabwe.

fastjet Zimbabwe maintained an “On-Time Arrival” performance of 86% {2021: 94%), while aircraft utilization on
fastjet operated averaged 6.53 block hours per day per aircraft (2021: 5.42 block hours per aircraft). The increase
in aircraft utilization is mostly attricutable to the removai of travel restrictions after almost two years of COVID-
19 induced restrictions.

Monetary policy in Zimbabwe still allows companies to maintain both ZWL local currency accounts and separate
US$ Nostro currency accounts. Throughout 2022, fastjet Zimbabwe sold tickets in both ZWL and US5 currencies,
generating ticket sales in hard currency USS, which was then used to settle foreign suppliers. However, the
rapidly devaluing ZWL currency, rampant inflation and reduced buying power of individuals and companies,
negatively impacted raw demand and the resultant overall load factors and yields.

Whilst the outlook for fastjet Zimbabwe remains positive and cash-generating, Zimbabwe continues to be a
challenging and volatile market to operate in, requiring daily hands-on management, continual change and
oversight. This volatility is driven primarily by a monthly devaluing ZWL currency, rapid inflation, and changing
monetary policies designed to help steer the economy and resultant changes to low supply and demand from
passengers.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement (continued)
federal Airlines (“FedAir”)

FedAir has a well-established market in the unscheduted shuttle safari business, carrying tourists directly to their
destinations in the Sabi Sands, Kruger National Park and surrounding areas. The gradual removai of travel
restrictions as from April 2022 with full restrictions experienced as from June contributed to the operating profit

of US$1.6m (2021: USS51.0m loss) of FedAir. It is to be noted that USSD.5m relates to the disposal of two of its
aircraft. ‘

The shareholders have injected US52.0m into the business in 2022. Those funds have mostly been used as
deposit for the six new aircraft on order.

Outlook for 2023

The Group is confident of its future prospects following 2022's performance. The group has leased an ERJ 145
operated by FedAir in November 2022 to cater for the increased demand. The Zimbabwe domestic network will
be launched in 2023 with the routes Harare Kariba, Hwange Victoria Falls and Kariba Victoria Falls. Anather ERJ-
145 is set to join the fleet in 2023 with backup capacity provided by third party operators. The six brand new
Caravans to be delivered in 2023 wili bring much needed reliability to FedAir's operations and decrease reliance
on third party aircraft and their associated costs.

Loan from SSCG

A loan capital amount of US5502k that was payable to 55CG as at 31 December 2021, was settled in full during
the year.

Loan from Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited {“SAHL"}
SAHL is a major shareholder of the Group and owned 67% as at 31 December 2022.
A loan balance of US$2.0m remained unpaid as of 31 December 2022 (2021:U552.0m}.

The amount due of US$2.0m is repayable no later than 29 November 2024 and attracts interest at a fixed annual
interest rate of 6%.

Under the Loan Amendment Agreement no. 2 between the Company as borrower and Solenta Aviation Holdings
Limited as lender dated 18 May 2020, Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited has the option to convert its outstanding
US52.0m toans provided to the Company into ordinary shares of £1.00 per share credited as fully paid at a
conversion rate of £10 per share. The option is exercisable at Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited’s sole discretion.
No notice of intention to exercise this conversion option has presently been issued.

On 25 May 2022, SAHL agreed to extend the repayment of the US$2.0m foan to 29 November 2024
For full details on the loans, see Note 18.
GECAS aircraft

Deregistration of the iast remaining Embraer 190 by the Tanzanian Civil Aviation Authority (TCAA) aircraft has
been completed and the aircraft left Tanzania on 31 May 2022.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement (continued)

GECAS aircraft {continued)

On 5 July 2022, a final settlement amount of US$450k was agreed with Celestial Aviation Trading 7 Limited in
relation to the tax claim from the Tanzania Revenue Authority and preceding settlement agreements, and this

has been fully paid by the Company.

Going Concern

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors have concluded that the continued adoption of the Going
Concern basis is appropriate.

The key assumptions and risks that the Directors have considered in reaching this conclusion are set out in the
Going Concern section within the Financial Review below and in Note 1 of the notes to the Financial Statements.

Board of Directors

They were no changes to the Board during the year.

%’ ‘
Mark Hurst

Group Chief Executive Officer
16 August 2023
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Section 172 Statement

The Board and every Director continues to act in such manner as it or he considers, in good faith, would be
most likely to promote the success and interests of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole
and in doing so have regard (amongst other matters) to the provisions and requirements as set out in the
Companies Act 2006 {“Duties”). Such matters included specifically as set out in Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006, the following:

* the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

* theinterests of the Company's employees;

* the need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

* the impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment;

= the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
* the need to act fairly as between the members of the Company.

It is noted that, prior to any matter being declared as resolved by the Board, the Duties would be carefully and
duly considered by every Director.

Principal decisions made during the year

The principal decisions and actions taken during the year decided by the Board and/or the Executive Team,
included the following:

Engagement of stakeholders in

Key decisions taken in the year Affected stakeholders L

the decision
The Board decided to consolidate the Shareholders The Board explained to the
3,804,570,000 shares in fastjet Limited on shareholders why the
the basis of 1 {one) share for every 10,000 consolidation was in the best
ordinary shares held. After the interests of the Company.
consolidation, there were 380,457 shares in
issue.
Increase in headcount and re-employment Employees FedAir reached out to previously
of previously retrenched FedAir employees. retrenched employees if they
This was to cater for an increase in were interested in joining the
operations. Company again.
The introduction of new route in fastjet Custamers and agents Pramaotion of the new route with
Zimbabwe connecting Victoria Falls in customers and Agents.
Zimbabwe and Maun in Botswana.
The sale of two aircraft owned by FedAir, Aircraft Lessors Negotiations of transaction with
25 - JEM and 75 - JEX. These were later aircraft lessors
leased back from another lessor.
The change of reservation system from Employees, Agents Training had to be conducted for
Radixx to Videcom’s VRS. the smooth transition from the

old system to the new system.
Signing of agreement with Tour Operators Destination Management Negotiation of agreements and
and Destination Management Companies Companies {(“DMC") working relationships with those
{"DMC"”} who had left FedAir between 2017 agents.

and 2020.



Faster anted ond o3 sunsidian, undertalon,s 1
Toredi Repoctand financial Statemerts for the goar erdad 31 Decsener M2

Strategic Report

Section 172 Statement (continued)

Engagement of stakeholders in

Key decisions taken in the year Affected stakeholders .

the decision
Purchase of six (6} Cessna Grand Caravan EX  Bank (Investec Bank FedAir had to approach the bank
from Textron with delivery scheduled in Limited) for funding and convince them
May 2023 and June 2023. of our business model.
Purchase of one Cessna Grand Caravan EX Aircraft Owner Negotiations for the transaction
from Airlink (Pty} Ltd in September 2077?. wilh the Alrcraft owner
Lease of an additional ERJ145 in November Aircraft Lessors Negotiations of transaction with
2022 to cater for increase in demand. aircraft lessors
Additions of charter and wet lease aircraft Lessors of aircraft Negotiations with aircraft
from third parties. lessors.
Additions of new agents and Destination Agents, Destination Agents and DMC were
Management Companies {(“DMC"} for Management Companies  approached to sign with fastjet.

fastjet Zimbabwe,

Consequences of Decisions

Board members and Directors receive training on their obligations which together with regular management and
financial reports and board papers ensures that the Board members and Directors have all the relevant
information required to enable them to properly reflect and consider the impact of all decisions.

Given the volatility of the markets the Group operates in, and the dynamic travel business sectors, the Board
adopts a proactive response to operational, regulatory and palitical issues.

The Directors fulfil their duties through a governance framework that delegates day-to-day decision-making to
the management of the Group companies.

The Board members draw on their experience and awareness of the impact of decisions in the longer term, to
assist in quality and consistent outcomes.

How we engage and foster strong relationships with some of our key stakeholders

The Board continues to take account of the impact of its decisions on all our stakeholders, who include
customers, employees, suppliers, shareholders, regulaters and governments, including as set out in section 172
of the Companies Act 2006.

The Board believes that part of that responsibility includes understanding the views of those stakeholders and
building constructive relationships with them. During 2022, the Board considered ways in which a stronger and
more meaningful engagement could take place between the Board and the workforce.

During the year the Board received presentations from relevant parts of the business focusing on the customer,
shareholders and regulators.
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Section 172 Statement (continued)
Employees

fastjet provides training and development for employees. This training includes Aviation Regulatory Training for
Safety, Security, Quality, Operations & Maintenance personnel; Systems training for administrative staff, Service
training for Customer Contact personnel, Sales training for Commercial personnel and Financial training for
Finance personnel. The Company regularly reviews its employment conditions and policies. Disciplinary and
grievance policies are well communicated to new and existing employees and are available on the intranet for
ease of reference for employees.

fastjet ensures that all employees are fairly compensated for work done, and equal opportunities are extended
to all employees. fastjet Human Resources policies, inciuding but not limited to those that relate to recruitment,
training, remuneration and benefits, are based on individual qualifications and performance.

fastjet is committed to treating employees equally, regardless of age, disability, gender reassignment, marital or
civil partner status, pregnancy or maternity, race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion or belief,
sex or sexual orientation (the Protected Characteristics]. The relevant policies set out the Company’s approach
to equal opportunities and the avoidance of discrimination at work. It applies to all aspects of employment.

Communication with employees is key, and the Executive management team and Directors follow a policy of
keeping all employees informed of strategic, commercial, financial and human resources matters.

Further details can be found in the Carporate Governance statement.

Suppliers & Customers

fastjet continues to work closely with its suppliers, developing reiationships in partnership with them. fastjet
works with its suppliers in ensuring their products and services are put into use in accordance with agreements
and, where relevant, prescribed standards that ensure brand and reputations are protected when doing so.
fastjet maintains a strong engagement with its key suppliers in developing these relationships, with a view to
accomplish the best possibie experience for customers and staff.

fastjet has flown over 4.0 million domestic and international passengers with an impressive aggregate an-time
performance, establishing itself as a punctual, reliable, and affordable value airline offering, with inclusive and
comptementary services to all customers. ’

fastjet Zimbabwe adapted their core low-cost airline mode! {pay for every extra thereafter) intoc a more value
airline offering. Additionally, fastjet Zimbabwe celebrated “Customer Appreciation Month” which included the
launch of various initiatives including recognition of loyalty from frequent flyer passengers, with a number of
free tickets as a “thank you” and as a form of frequent travelier benefit.

fastjet remains focused on offering quality services and choices to all customers, whilst maintaining the brand as
a value driven, safe and reliable airline.

Communities & Environment

fastjet continues to support local communities, as it has done in previous years, as part of their social
responsibilities. This takes varicus forms, including supporting charitable and sporting events, recruitment of
local personnel, and educational events with local communities. The Group remains committed to providing a
safe and heaithy working environment and supports efforts which reduce the Group’s overall impact on the
environment. In addition to good governance practices, through our Health/Safety committees and various
management initiatives, fastjet maintains a strong focus on adopting and enhancing best practices in all matters
relating to employees, suppliers and customers.
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Section 172 Statement (continued)

Government
fastjet works constructively with relevant ministries, civil aviation authoerities and other government bodies in
each country where it operates, regardiess of political affiliation. Whilst fastjet believes in the rights of individuals

to engage in the democratic process, it is fastjet’s policy not to make political donations or to be involved in
politics.

There were no political donations made or political expenditure incurred during the 2022 and 2021 financial
years.

Business Conduct

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance, and a description of how the Group has
complied with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 can be found on pages 31 to 41 of this Annual Report.

The Board believes that modern slavery and human trafficking are significant global issues presenting a challenge
for businesses worldwide and has committed to continually reviewing its practices to combat slavery and human
trafficking.

The Board expects ail of its colleagues to observe the high standards contained within the Group’s policies in

relation to bribery and corruption, data protection, equality, diversity and inclusion, IT security, fraud and
whistleblowing, each of which is reinforced through appropriate guidance and briefings.

fastjet’s Vision

“To be a successful pan-African value airline operation, brand and franchise.”

To provide affordable air transportation in all economically viable African markets.

2023 Core Strategy

The core strategy for the Qusiness is aligned to our vision to be a successful pan-African airline brand, based on
value-driven air travel principles of the low-cost carrier (“LCC”) operating model, adapted on a per country basis
to cater for local nuances and requirements, creating what we call an “affordable value airline offering” with

inctusive and complementary services to all customers.

The 2023 initiatives aimed at achieving this goal inciude:

- Supporting Group airlines in the achievement of IATA Operational Safety Audit accreditation (“IOSA”);

- Embedding fiscal stability and strengthening operating cashflows, specifically with reference to securing
positive cash flows from our Zimbabwean aperation;

- Onboarding at least one additional EMB145 aircraft to the Part 121 operations of the group;
Launch of Zimbabwe domestic network;
Enhancing the Company’s data management and system capabilities;

Revenue maximisation through increased reach and improved revenue management discipline;
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2023 Core Strategy continued

improving the financial control environment and reduce cost through increased automation;
- Engaging with distribution partners te align our product offerings;

- Preparing for further growth in the Southern African region;

Building commercial opportunities, partnerships and ancillary services; and

- Onboarding the six new Cessna C208B EX aircraft to the FedAir fieet.
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Market Overview

fastjet now has operational bases in Zimbabwe and South Africa, where it operates scheduled and chartered
services to the capital cities of Harare and lohannesburg, connecting business and leisure travellers with
domestic destinations in each of these countries and connecting South Africa and Zimbabwe fundamentally.

Zimbabwe W

8 TN

Zimbabwe is a land-locked country in Southern Africa covering 391,000 sq km, with a population of 14.7m people,
40% of whom are below the age of 15, and an arnual GDP of US$35.0bn. The Zimbabwean economy has a high
dependency on mining, accounting for approximately 12% of the country’s GDP, and its biggest trading partners
are South Africa, United Arab Emirates, China and Mozambigue, accounting for more than 86% of Zimbabwe's
exports.

fastjet commenced operations in Zimbabwe at the end of 2015 and in 2022
operated four frequencies between Harare and Johannesburg daily; once a day
flights between Harare and Victoria Falls, Harare and Bulawayo, Bulawayo and
lohannesburg and up to three daily frequencies on the Johannesburg and Victoria
Falls route.

During 2022, fastjet Zimbabwe load factors on its Zimbabwean aperations
increased to 75% from 64% in 2021, fastjet Zimbabwe also realised 30% increase
in revenue per passenger carried.

Harare to Johannesburg: During 2022, fastjet Zimbabwe enjoyed an
approximate 43% (2021: 45%) frequency share on the Harare-
Johannesburg route, with this frequency share ailowing the airline to tailor
an offering better suited to the higher-yielding business travel market.
fastjet Zimbabwe competes against Air Zimbabwe, South African
Airways and SA Airlink on this route.

Harare to Victoria Falls: fastjet Zimbabwe had an approximate 76%
freguency share on this route during 2022 {2021: 70%), competing only
against Air Zimbabwe which operated the route on an ad-hoc basis,
depending on their fleet serviceability and availability.

Harare to Bulawayo: fastjet Zimbabwe held an approximate 77% (2021:
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70%) frequency share on this predominantly business-orientated route, with competition only from Air
Zimbabwe, but again on an erratic ad-hoc basis, depending on their fleet serviceability and availability.

Bulawayo to Johannesburg: In 2022 fastjet Zimbabwe achieved 35% (2021: 34%) frequency share on this
route with our main competitor being SA Airlink who operate twice daily on this route and have done so for

longer than us.

Johannesburg to Victoria Falls: in 2022 fastjet Zimbabwe achieved 71% (2021: 34%) frequency share on this
route with our main competitor as from November 22 being SA Airlink and South African Airways who

operate daily on this route,

Kruger Mpumalanga to Victoria Falls: In 2022 fastjet Zimbabwe achieved 100% (2021: nil} frequency share

on this route.

Maun to Victoria Falls: In 2022 fastjet Zimbabwe achieved 100% {(2021: nil} frequency share on this route
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fastjet Zimbabwe has met the expectations of the Zimbabwean passengers in 2022, The airline is well positioned
as the leading airline in Zimbabwe with its reliability remaining unquestioned and performing a critical service.

Scuth Africa

South Africa, located on the Southern tip of Africa, covers a landmass of
1,221,037 sq km and has a population of 60.6m people, 60% of which are below
the age of 25. The country has an annual GDP of US$807bn, making it one of
the most developed economies on the African continent, with a 29%
dependency on industries driven by the country’s global leadership in platinum,
goid and chromium production. Socuth Africa’s largest trading partners are
China, Germany, USA, UK and Japan.

fedAir enables fastjet to access the South Africa market initially through the
FedAir brand licence agreement and, after October 2018, the Group exercised
its purchase aption and acquired shareholding in FedAir.

FedAir holds an Airline Operators Certificate {“AOQC”) in South Africa,
allowing it to operate domestically and, subject to bilateral authorisations,
it also allows FedAir to operate to neighbouring countries and further afield
regionally. NAMIBIA

During 2022, FedAir operated a fleet of nine smaller gauge aircraft, three of
which are owned and the rest on dry leases (2021: six aircraft). Additional

Ladysman, Pchards

aircraft were leased on a short-term basis to cater for the increase in [ ol MY W?m
demand as and when the need arose. The airiine operates daily shuttle air Do Ax, ' i
services to South Africa’s most popular safari reserves based in Sabi, |- - ‘
Kruger, Timbavati, Phinda and Madikwe areas whilst also providing charter | ™* sasms I&LM. ?CDEJ:: i
services to neighbouring countries and Zimbabwe. FedAir is one of only two /,ﬁ'?"‘“’*“ Flaavet, .
operators of private departure lounges at OR Tamba International Airport | s e smwiwe S R

in Johannesburg, Africa’s busiest airport. tts main competitor providing
shuttle services has been absorbed by FedAir in 2022. This has further entrenched FedAir as one of the most
reliable operator in this segment with new clients and lodges being serviced. FedAir thus remains well pesitioned
to capitalize on the opportunities that will arise once tourism resumes to pre pandemic levels.

The FedAir business currently holds both scheduled and non-scheduled licences from the South African
Department of Transport, allowing it to operate scheduled passenger airline operations within South Africa.
These licences provide an ideal platform from which to expand the fastjet brand in this country, in addition ta
providing interconnection opportunities with fastjet Zimbabwe’s own operation.

FedAir introduced the Embraer 145 fleet type onto the FedAir AOC and also established and operated an ACMI
wet-lease aperation for Fastjet Zimbabwe as from quarter four 2019. Another ERJ-145 operated by FedAir on
behalf of Fastjet Zimbabwe was added in Quarter 4 2022.
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Regulatory environment

The regulatory environment remains an important consideration for fastjet. The Group has made considerable
progress in some areas, though the complex reguiatory landscape in Africa remains a significant challenge. A
major factor in achieving fastjet’s long term growth potential is the dependence on government approvals being
granted and the airline gaining access to new markets. The airline is therefore subject to the possibility of delays in
gaining approvals due to often burdensome administrative processes.

Creating bases in fastjet’s target markets depends on gaining several government approvals. These approvals are
granted firstly in the form of an Air Service Permit (“ASP”} nermally issued by the Ministry of Transport, which is
followed by a detailed review of the Company’s business plan and financial status. After an ASP has been granted,
the respective Civil Aviation Authority will issue an Air Operator Certificate once it is satisfied that the airline can
operate safely and that it complies with all local regulatory requirements. This process is governed by a framework
prescribed by the International Civif Aviation Organisation (“ICAQ”). Finally, before the airline can operate into other
countries, those destination countries often need to grant a Fareign Operator Permit for each individual aircraft type
following a review of the airline’s maintenance programme, operations, and records of each aircraft type to be
operated on the route,

The Group continues to work ciosely with and have dialogue with governments at the highest level and within
the industry to promote reform of the regulatory environment regarding route rights and market access.

fastjet imposes standards on its own operations to comply wherever possible with worldwide identified leading
“best-practice” international regulations and operating standards. The Company takes every opportunity to
support and drive for improved safety and operational regulation and oversight by the various civil aviation
autharities.

The Strategic Report, the Annual Report and the audited Financial Statements on pages 51- 119 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 August 2023,

L4

/
Mark Hurst

Group Chief Executive Officer
16 August 2023
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Chief Financial Officer’s Statement
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group is subject to various risks, including those that derive from the nature of the aviation industry and
from aperating in Africa. Risk assessment and evaluation is an essential part of the Group’s planning and an
impartant aspect of the Group’s internal contro! system. As more fully described in the Going Concern statement
in the Financial Review below, there are a number of key sensitivities which would impact the Group's cashflows.

The risk management and internal control systerns encompass the Company’s policies, culture, organisational
behaviour, processes and systems. The Group has a risk management framework and process that identifies and
monitors its principal risks and regularly identifies mitigating actions to those risks.

The following list sets out the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties, many of which are inherent in the
operation of an airline in any jurisdiction. it provides details as to how the Group manages these:

The risks and uncertainties described below are the ones that are expected to have the most significant impact
on the Group:

Climate Risk: There is an environmental risk wherein customers becoming increasingly aware of the
carbon impact of taking a flight in their decision to buy a ticket. fastjet continues to monitor the impact
of its carbon emissions.

= Safety: A major safety incident could adversely affect fastiet's operations, financial performance and
reputation. fastjet’s quality and safety management systems ensure that there are appropriate safety
resources and procedures. There are also additional assurances from the licenced paost holders in each
airline, and oversight from the fastjet Limited Board's Safety Committee;

= Strategic: The continued operation of existing routes, the commencement of operations in new markets
and the selection of fleet type can have a material impact on the Group's financial performance and
future prospects. During 2019 the management team has fundamentally addressed the Group’s services
and fleet and introduced more rigorous criteria against which new services will be evaiuated;

= Political uncertainty: This is continuously monitored by the Board and acticns are taken if and when
required. The group strives to have positive working relationships in the countries it operates in and
operates according to domestic and international recognised standards and principles;

»  Regulatory: The retention of regulatory approvals and licences is essential for services and operations
to continue uninterrupted. The Group maintains effective management systems in place to ensure
compliance with aviation regulations in its licenced markets — Zimbabwe and South Africa;

= Oilprice: The Group does not enter into fuel hedging contracts but ensures that where possible jts ticket
pricing strategy reflects current oil prices, There is a residual oil price risk in possible movements in fuel
price for sold but un-flown tickets. This is naturally mitigated by the very shaort timeframe fram the
booking date to flight date. Most fuel purchases are currently priced on a fixed monthly basis to mitigate
this risk;

= Commercial: Network and fleet planning, and the need for effective competitor and market analysis
and reavenue management are important to ensure effective on-going revenue growth. The Group has
an experienced management and commercial team, which utilises in-house sales, pricing and marketing
tools and, where appropriate, external market analysis;
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

*  QOperational: Maintenance of safe, reliable airlines is essential. The Group has in place the necessary
systems and internal controls to ensure the airlines have sufficlent crew levels to operate the schedule
and effective contract management around key supplier relationships, such as aircraft lessors,
maintenance providers and ground handling. fastiet works together with the appropriate authorities to
ensure that security measures are in place and effective, and performs regular audits;

*  Finance: The Group needs to ensure that it has the financial resources to continue operations and
deliver its strategic objectives. The Group has appropriate budgeting, forecasting and cash management
systems in place. This is included in the going concern section on page 28. The Company is in the process
of further enhancing and strengthening its reporting and internal control environment;

= |nformation Technology (“IT”): The availability, security, compliance and performance of website,
reservation systems and other critical technologies, and the protection of company and customer data
are critical to ongoing operations;

= Currency risk in Zimbabwe: the ZWL continued to devalue against the USS in Zimbabwe during the last
number of years and continued to do so in 2022; the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe continuaily monitors
this devaluation and adjusts policies accordingly and as deemed appropriate. The changing policies need
active management and should the country at any time not allow airlines to charge tickets in USS$ or
access to US$ liquidity in-country ceases or becomes heavily restricted, this would represent a
significant risk to the Group; and

* Regulatory and other associated risks: Significant other risks remain associated with operating airlines
and business in Africa including but not limited to political, judicial, administrative, fiscal and other
regulatory matters.

Financial Review

The organisational and business model of the fastjet Group is split into the following specific cash-generating
units ("CGUs™);

- fastjet Zimbabwe — scheduled airline operations out of Zimbabwe;
- federal Airlines — non-scheduled shuttle services and charter inside South Africa and regionally;

- Central - Holding Company and financing;
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Financial Review {continued)

The performance of cash generating units is included below:

Year ended fastjet Central federal Eliminate
31 December 2022 Zimbabwe {Limited) Airlines Inter-segment Total
us$’000 us$'000 Uss’oco Us$’000 Us$'000
External 50,046 - 14,011 - 64,057
Inter-segment - 250 2,816 (3,066) -
Total revenue 50,046 250 16,827 {3,066) 64,057
Other income 161 9,037 1,567 (890) 9,875
EBITDA 3,540 10,525 2,583 (3,232) 13,416
Other finance {expense)} / income {557) (406) {259) (3N {1,259}
Depreciation / amortisation (124} - {684) (510) {1,318)
Profit / loss before tax 2,859 10,119 1,640 (3,779) 10,839
Tax - - (313) 182 (131)
Net profit / loss 2,859 16,119 1,327 {3,597) 10,708

Loss from discontinued activities net of

tax _ - S ¢ ) B
Profit for the year for the Group 2,859 10113 1327 13.597) 10,633
Non-current assets 6,305 6,179 6,055 - 18,539

Group revenue from continuing operations increased by US536.2m to USS64.1m (2021: US527.9m). This was
due to both fastjet Zimbabwe and FedAir resuming normal operations after COVID - 19. The complete removal
of travel restrictions coupled with the introduction of additional frequencies contributed to the significant better
performance compared to even pre-pandemic.

Zimbabwe revenue significantly increased year on year by US527.4m to USS$50.0m (2021: US$22.6m).

A significant part of this revenue is attributable to the Johannesburg Victoria Falls route which benefited from
the lack of competition for almost half of the year and the onboarding of new agents. The other existing routes
also experienced better performance attributable to the desire to travel after two years of restrictions. The
reduced capacity on those markets further contributed to achieve better revenue per passenger and load factors.

FedAir revenue increased by US510.7m to US$16.8m (2021: USS6.1m). As travel restrictions were gradually lifted
as from April with full restrictions removed in 32-2022; this prompted the resumption of connecting flights from
FedAir's main markets, FedAir capitalised on the recovery compounded by the exit of some of its competitors to
deliver this strong gerformance.
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Financial Review [continued)

Total costs for the group increased by 75.3% to US$63.1m (2021: US$36.0m). This was in line with the increase
in revenue and increase in operations for the year 2022. Overall costs have increased less than revenue due to
there being certain fixed costs, however the increase in variable costs was in line with the increase in revenue.

The Group managed to generate a profit from continued operations of US$10.7m (2021: US54.4mj as a result of
the operating companies of the Group generating profits and also drawing down from the Legacy Loan facility as
described on page 9. Excluding the one-off other income in Central of US$9.0m the Group had an operational
profit from rontinued operations of US$2.2 compared to toss of US$8.1m in 2021,

The performance of cash-generating units for the year ended 31 December 2021 as comparatives, is included in
the table below.

Year ended fastjet Central federal Eliminate
31 December 2021 Zimbabwe (Limited) Airlines  [nter-segment Total
_ Uss 000 US$'000 U5$'00_0 Us$'000 Uss’'000
External revenue 22,607 - 5,307 - 27,914
Inter-segment revenue - - 775 (775) -
Total revenue 22,607 - 6,082 (775} 27,914
Other income 83 13,186 719 (154) 13,834
EBITDA (3,192) 9,943 {647) 453 6,557
Other finance (expense} / income {958) (681) {140) 6 (1,773)
Depreciation / amortisation {126) (8,482} {208) 7,972 (844)
{Loss) / Profit before tax (4,276) 780 {995) 8,431 3,940
Tax - - 228 ] 182 410
Net (lass) / profit (4.276) 780 {767) 8,613 4,350
Loss from discontinued activities net of tax - - - - (4,341}
Profit for the year for the Group - - - - 9

Non-current assets 7,620 5,657 4,052 ] - 17,329
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Key performance indicators

The Directors consider the following to be the key performance indicators (“KPIs”} when measuring fastjet’s
underlying operational performance. The KPis reflect standard airline industry metrics which provide measures
of efficiency and business performance. They provide a mechanism far the Group to track performance at both
a Group leve! and industry level. They are indicative of how the business is achieving its objectives from an
operational, cost and revenue perspective. These measures are now split between scheduled and unscheduled
services, whereby the farmer relates to the combined operating perfoermance of fastjet Zimbabwe and FedAir.

Scheduled Airline Services

Measure 2022 2021 Movement
Passenger numbers 273,821 153,141 79%
Revenue per Passenger (USS) 182.7 138.0 32%
Revenue per Total Seat {USS) 140.4 88.0 60%
Seats Flown 356,443 239,924 499%
Available Seat Kilometres {(“ASK") 283,005,915 197,685,120 43%
Load Factor 77% 64% 20%
Revenue per ASK (US cents) 17.68 11.23 57%
Cost per ASK (US cents)

{exciuding exceptional items) 16.85 13.66 23%
Cost per ASK ex. Fuel {US cents)

{excluding exceptional items} 10.78 10.01 8%
Aircraft Utilisation {(Hours) 6.53 5.18 26%
Aircraft Utilisation at Year End {Hours) 7.49 5.18 45%

Unscheduled Airline Services

Measure 2022 2021 Movement
Passenger numbers — Shuttle 31,983 14,326 123%
Passenger numbers — Charter 8,789 3,401 158%
Revenue per pax (USS) - Shuttie 244 221 10%

Revenue per pax (USS) -~ Charter 706 633 12%
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KPl commentary
Scheduled Airline Services

Passenger numbers increased to 273,821 from 153,141 in 2021. This increase is mostly attributable to the
notable performance of the Johannesburg-Victoria Falls route and also its other existing routes. Two new routes
were introduced in 2022 fastjet launched flights from Victoria Falls, Zimbabwe to Neispruit, Kruger Mpumalanga,
South Africa, on 16 March 2022. On 30 June 2022, fastjet launched a new route, four times a week connecting
Victoria Falls in Zimbabwe and Maun in Botswana. Those routes are still in their launch phase and not yet
contributing pasitively to the group’s overall performance.

Revehue per passenger increased by 32%.

Load Factor grew to 77% from 64% in 2021. The growth is attributable to a return to a more normatised
operating schedule.

Cost per ASK (US cents) (“CASK”) {excluding exceptional items) increased by 23% mostly due to the increase in
fuel prices experienced in 2022. Excluding fuel CASK increased by 8% attributable to the general inflationary
environment the world is facing.

Aircraft Utilisation (hours) increased by 26% from 5.18 hours in 2021 to 6.53 hours in 2022.

Unscheduled Airline Services

Number of passengers for the shuttle business grew by 17,657 from 14,326 in 2021, as travel restrictions eased,
and the tourism sector started reviving. Revenue per passenger for the shuttle services increased by 10% from

2021 to 2022 due to cater for increase in costs as a result of inflation.

Number of passengers for the Charter business increased by 5,388 from 3,401 in 2021 for the same reasons
explained for the Shuttle services increase. The revenue per passenger increased by 12%.
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Funding Activities

Shareholder Fundraising
There was no capital raise during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
Loan from S5CG

A loan capital amount of US$502k (2021: US$502k) that was payable to SSCG as at 31 December 2021 was settled
in full during 2022.

Loan from Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited (“SAHL”)

SAHL is a major shareholder of the Group and cwned 67% as at the balance sheet date (2021: 67%).

A loan balance of US52.0m remained unpaid as of 31 December 2022 (2021: US$2.0m).

The amount due of US$2.0m attracts interest at a fixed 6%.

Under the Loan Amendment Agreement no. 2 between the Company as borrower and Solenta Aviation Hoidings
Limited as lender dated 18 May 2020, Soienta Aviation Holdings Limited has the option to convert its outstanding
US$2.0m lpans provided to the Company into ordinary shares of £1.00 per share credited as fully paid at a
conversion rate of £10 per share. The option is exercisable at Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited’s sole discretion.
No notice of intention to exercise this conversion option has presently been issued.

On 25 May 2022, SAHL agreed to extend the repayment of the US$2.0m loan to 28 November 2024.

For full details on the loans, see Note 18.
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Monetary policy changes within Zimbabwe

In October 2018, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe announced a monetary policy change introducing new and
separate USS bank accounts which they called US$ Nostro accounts. In doing this, they effectively separated US$
restricted bank balances and accounts into two identifiable and separate new bank accounts, whereby all current
USS restricted bank balances became domestic ZWL bank balances; thereafter all companies were required to
open up the new USS Nostro account for future hard currency USS transactions.

By doing this, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe informally recognised a parallel currency, and this resulted in the
Zimbabwean market no longer recognising the official exchange rate of ZWL1.00 = US$1.00.

On 22 February 2019, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe formally announced the introduction of a new domestic
currency which effectively devalued its domestic US dollar-denominated assets and liabilities including cash
balances. At the same time, they introduced an interbank exchange rate of ZWL2.50 = US51.00. In addition, the
Zimbabwe government issued Statutory Instrument 33 with a fixed exchange rate between the ZWL and the
USS at a rate of 1:1 for the period before 22 February 2019.

Since March 2019, because of the above changes, the ZWL to USS exchange rates via interbank market devalued
significantly from the starting ZWL12.50 to an interbark rate of ZWL16.77 as of 31 December 2019. This
devaluation has driven a significant increase in costs of all supplies in the country with resultant inflation
running in excess of 200%.

On 26 June 2019, an official (s35 of exchange control regulations statutory instrument 109 of 1996)
announcement was made by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe of the removal of multi-currency, with the ZWL as
the anly legal tender in country except for international airlines.

On 11 October 2019, the Publit Accountants and Auditors Board, which is mandated to regulate auditing and
accounting standards in Zimbabwe, advised that there was a broad market consensus within the accounting
and auditing professions that the factors and characteristics to apply the Financial Reporting Hyperinflationary
Economies Standard (IAS29) in Zimbabwe had been met. |AS 29 shall be applied for the preparation and
presentation of financial staterments of entities operating in Zimbabwe for the financial periods ended on or
after 1 July 2019.

The change in monetary policy included a commitment by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (“RBZ") that
qualifying foreign creditors would be settled at the pre devaluation rate of US$1-00: ZWL1-00. In this respect,
the Company has secured approval from the RBZ to register certain historic Group intercompany loans made
to fastjet Zimbabwe Limited (“fastjet Zimbabwe”) with a value of US$22.5m as a legacy loan (the “Legacy Loan”)
a further US52.7m of fastjet Zimbabwe creditors and US$4.7m as blocked creditor funds.

The Legacy Loan balance forms part of the total Group intercompany loan funding to fastjet Zimbabwe since it
first started operations, but none of the loans had formally been registered with the RBZ beforehand. The
Company is awaiting the final position from the RBZ on the next steps to expunge balances under the Legacy
Loan, as new legislation is being drafted to govern this. In the meantime, the RBZ has allowed the Company to
draw against the Legacy Loan in ZWL currency to settle fastjet Zimbabwe creditors of U5529.4m.

On 23 June 2020 the RBZ introduced a foreign exchange auction system to increase the availability of foreign
currency to all economic players in Zimbabwe.

Consequences of monetary policy changes within Zimbabwe on reporting
It was determined that the functional currency of fastjet Zimbabwe remains USD. There was therefore no

exchange adjustment required at the consolidation level as the functional currency was the same as the Group
functional currency.
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Strategic Report

Going Concern

The continued eperations of the Group operated at a profit and generated a positive cash inflow during 2022.
The main driver of the positive cash inflow in 2022 was accessing the funds recognised under the Legacy Loan
facility as well as the business generating operating profits.

Other significant risks remain associated with operating airlines and business in Africa including but not limited
to pofitical, judicial, administrative, fiscal and other reguiatory matters. Many countries in Africa, including those
in which the Group currentiy operate may in the future experience severe socio-economic hardship and political
instability, including political unrest and government change.

The commitment of local business community, government officials and agencies and the judicial system to abide
by legal requirements and negotiated agreements may be more uncertain, creating concerns with respect to
licences and agreements for business which may be susceptible to delay, revision or cancellation, as a result of
which legal redress may be uncertain or delayed. ’

fastjet Limited is the holding company of the Group and its expenses are funded through the activities of the
subsidiary companies. As a result, the going concern assumption has been assessed as part of its function within

the wider group as explained above including the conclusion.

From 2023 onwards as the Group is forecast to generate positive cash inflow from normal trading operations,
no longer accessing the Legacy Loan facility will have no impact on the Group.

The Directors bhelieve, based on current financial projections and funds available, that the Group and Company
will have enough resources to meet its operational needs and to make required repayments on the debt facilities
over the relevant period, being at least until August 2024. Accordingly, in preparing these Financial Statements,
the Directors continue to adept the going concern basis.

The key assumptions applied by the Directors in the preparation of the detailed cash flow forecasts, which ferm
the basis of this forecast are:

*  Flight operations for FedAir continuing on the same trend as experienced in 2022, throughout 2023 and
2024,

= Zimbabwe continue to be a net cash generating unit.

The Directors have considered a number of risks in preparing these forecasts, including inter alia:
*  Adverse currency exchange rate movements.

The key sensitivities to the underlying detailed cash flow forecasts are as follows:

*  Load factors dropping by 10% from the forecast of around 75%. The effect of this on forecast cashfiow
over the next 12 months would be a decrease in cashflow of US$7.6m

. Drop in average ticket prices by 10% over the next 12 months. The effect on the forecast will be a
decrease in cashflow of around US$7.6m.

*  Price of crude oil increasing by 10% compared to the current price forecasted of US594 a barrel The
effect of this on forecast cashflow over the next 12 months would be a decrease in cashflow of
Uss2.4m.

These mostly external risks do show high level of sensitivity of the forecasts to the key assumptions described
above, however none of the sensitivities indicate a potential negative cashflow
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Strategic Report
Non-trading financial performance

Post balance sheet events

Loan from Satfin limited {“SATF”)

On 14 April 2023, fastjet Limited took a short-term loan from SATF with a value of U356.0m to bridge the short-
term funding gap for the purchase of the six {6} Cessna Grand Caravan EX. The loan has been fully paid on 04
August 2023. The following were the terms of the loan:

* The Loan was to be repayable ir full by the 15th of August 2023;

* The lean was renewable subject to mutual agreement and updated terms and conditions;

* A raising fee for the Loan facility of US$172k was paid by fastjet Limited before 30 june 2023;

* The loan bears interest at a rate of 6% [six percent) per annum compounded monthly in arrears and
caleulated over a 360-day year basis; and

= Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited (“SAHL”) acted as guarantor on the loan facility.

Delivery of six (6) Cessna Grand Caravan EX

The six {6} Cessna Grand Caravan EX purchased from Textron in 2022 were delivered in June and July 2023. The
total consideration paid amounted to US517.5m. An amount of US$5.7m was settled by the group’s own funds
and the balance of US$12m was settled from a facility from Investec. The facility was disbursed in two tranches
of USS6m each on 26 June and 27 July respectively. The facility is denominated in ZAR for a seven-year term and
bears interest at monthly JIBAR + 3.3%.

Acquisition of a Mauritian SPV

The Company acquired a Mauritian SPV and renamed it Rempart Aviation Limited (formerly Acia Aero Leasing
Atlas Limited) for a consideration of USS 1,000 from Acia Aero Holdings Limited. Rempart Aviation Limited has
subsequently entered a Letter of Intent with United Airlines Limited to acquire three Embraer (3) 145 XR for a
consideration of US$8.4m. The Company intends to raise convertible loan notes issued to major shareholders
for a value of US510m which will be used to acquire the 3 Embraer 145 XR mentioned earlier with the balance
used for heavy maintenance of the aircraft. Prior to the loan notes being raised a bridging loan facility has been
entered into with Satfin Limited (“SATF”) for US52.5m bearing 12% interest which will be used as a deposit for
those aircraft. The US$2.5m will be refunded once the convertible foan notes are issued around September or
October 2023.

Pear! Yield South Africa

A new company Pearl Yield South Africa has been incorporated with fastjet Limited holding 50% shares. The
Company operates a sales office at ORT International Airport in Johannesburg as from April 2023 on behalf of
fastjet Zimbabwe.

Federal Air Proprietary Limited

Parrot Aviation {Pty) Limited acquired 100% of Federal Air {Pty) Limited from Solenta Investment Holdings (Pty)
Limited.

fastjet Zimbabwe Limited — South Africa Branch

fastjet Zimbabwe Limited opened a branch in South Africa.

Kris Jaganah
Group Chief Financial Officer
16 August 2023
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Corporate Governance

Corpoarate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors of fastjet Limited present their report on the audited annua!l accounts for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company has adopted
policies and procedures which reflect the principles of the Corporate Governance Guidelines for Smaller Quoted
Companies ("QCA Corporate Governance Code”) as are appropriate to 2 Company whose shares are admitted to
trading on AIM. A copy of the companies formalised governance policies in line with the QCA code can be found
on fastjet's website https://www.fastjet.com. Post de-listing, fastjet Limited has continued to use the QCA code.
The report of the Audit and Remuneration Committees are set out on pages 38 and 39 respectively. As part of
the delisting, we agreed with the shareholders that we will follow the QCA code for at least one year.

Internal control

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Group's systems of internal controls and for reviewing
their effectiveness. These internal controls are designed to safeguard the assets of the Group and to ensure the
reliability of financial information for both internal use and external publication. Whilst they are aware that no
system can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, considering increased activity and
further development of the Group, continuing reviews of internal controls are undertaken to ensure that they
are adequate and effective. In particular, recognising the immaturity and evolving nature of the business,
management continues to invest time and effort to improve controls within the Group.

Risk management

The Board considers risk assessment to be important in achieving its strategic objectives. Project milestones and
timelines are reguiarly reviewed. An assessment of all key risks faced by the Group is maintained on a risk
register, reviewed by the Board on a regular basis, and appropriate, mitigating and monitoring actions agreed.
Principal risks and uncertainties are summarised on page 21- 22.

Employees

The Directors follow a policy of keeping all employees informed of strategic, commercial, financial and human
resources matters.

Securities trading

The Board has adopted a Share Dealing Code that applies to Directors, senior management and any employee in
possession of price-sensitive information. All such persons are prohibited from trading in the Company's
securities if they are in possession of price-sensitive information. Subject to this condition and trading
prohibitions applying to certain periods, trading can occur provided the relevant individual has received the
apgropriate prescribed clearance from the Chairman. This continues to be the case following the delisting from
AfM,
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Stakeholders

Any party that has an interest in the Company and that can affect or that can be affected by the business is
considered as a stakeholder by the Company. The Company has identified the following as its stakeholders:

*  Customers

* Employees

= Suppliers

*  Government
* Shareholders
* Communities
*  Media

Customers, Employees, Suppliers, Government and our Shareholders are all considered as the key stakehoiders
of the Company.

Customers

fastjet has flown over 4.0 million domestic and international passengers with an impressive aggregate on-time
performance, establishing a reputation as a punctual, reliable, and affordable value airline offering, with inclusive
and complementary services to all customers.

Employees
The Company provides training and development for employees.

The Company regularly reviews its employment conditions and policies. Disciplinary and grievance policies are
well communicated to new employees and are available on a staff portal for ease of reference for employees.
fastjet ensures that all employees are fairly compensated for work done and provides equal opportunities to all
employees. its employment policies, including hiring, training, working conditions, compensation and benefits,
and promotion, are based on individual qualifications. it treats its employees equally, irrespective of gender, age,
race, sexual grientation, disability or other status unrelated to job performance.

The Directors follow a policy of keeping all employees informed of strategic, commercial, financial and human
resources matters.

Suppliers

As the aviation industry is highly specialised and demanding, with key focus on high standards of safety, quality
and overail excellence, 365 days a year and on a 24/7 basis, to be and remain successful it is critical to establish
solid long-term relationships with key suppliers that can support the business’s high demands at all times and at
any time. This means our supply chain and relationships are a critical part of our continued success and operating
ability and are maintained as such.

Government

fastjet works constructively with relevant ministries, civil aviation authorities and other government bodies in
each country we operate, regardless of political affiliation. fastjet believes in the rights of individuals to engage
in the democratic process. However, it is fastjet’s policy not to make political donations or be involved in politics.

There were no political donations made or political expenditure incurred during the 2022 and 2021 financial
years.
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Shareholders

The Board is committed to providing effective communication with the sharehoiders of the Company. Whilst
the company was stilf listed on the London Stock Exchange, significant developments were disseminated through
the London Stock Exchange announcements. After delisting regular updates are disseminated through the
Company website. The Board views the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") as a forum for communication
between the Company and its shareholders and encourages their participation in its agenda. The Board maintains
contact with its advisers and public relations consultants in order to ensure that the Board develops an
understanding of the views of major sharehoiders about the Company.

As a Board, our purpose, values and behavicurs are always at the forefront. We aim to lead by example
by ensuring that the values are integrated into decision making and that the policies and procedures we put in
place maintain the open and collaborative cuiture we have at fastiet. This includes the Safety Committee
monitoring the nature and frequency of safety incidenits to determine whether there are any countercultural
trends; the Board reviewing whistleblowing cases to understand the matters being reported; and the
Nominations Committee reviewing company-wide progress on culture, diversity and inclusion initiatives.

Directors

The Directors wha served the Company during the period and up to the publication of this report:

Name Position Appointment / Resignation date
Rashid Wally Non-Executive Chairman — Independent Appointed 01 April 2017

Robert Burnham Non-Executive Director — Independent Appointed 30 May 2006

Miark Hurst Group Chief Executive Officer Appointed 02 July 2018

Kris Jaganah Group Chief Financial Officer Appointed 05 April 2019

Commitment of Directors

The Board is satisfied that each of the Directors is able to allocate sufficient time to the Group to discharge their
responsibilities effectively.

Skills and development of Directors
New members of the Board receive induction training on their first appointment. This ensure that the Directors

have the necessary up to date experience, skills and capabilities. Additionally, the Group's legal advisors
Charles Russell Speechlys {“CRS") are engaged on key matters as and when required by the Board.
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Corporate Governance
Board meetings

The Board meets regularly, tygically each quarter, and throughout the year on an as required basis in relation to
normal operational matters. At least four of these meetings are held in person. The Board is responsible for
formulating, reviewing and approving the Group's strategy, financial activities and operating performance.

Name Position Board Audit Remuneration
Meeting Committee Committee

Rashid Wally Chairman 6/6 1/1 1/1

Mark Hurst Group Chief Executive Officer 6/6 1/1 1/1

Kris Jaganah Grou;(‘iﬁief Financial Officer 6/6 1/1 -

Rob Burnham Non-Executive Director 6/6 1/1 1/1

Performance Effectiveness

Given the Company’s current size and stage of deveiopment the Board has not considered it necessary to
undertake an assessment of the Board performance and effectiveness. The Board will continue to monitor this
on an ongoing basis as the Company continues to grow and will decide to conduct a board effectiveness review

when deemed necessary.
Access to Management and External Advice

All Directors have access to the advice of the Company’s solicitors and lawyers. The Company Secretary ensures
necessary information is supplied to the Directors on a timely basis to enable them to discharge their duties
effectively and all Directors have access to independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, as and
when required.

7
Rashid Wally
Chairman of the Board
16 August 2023
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Current Board of Directors

The Board of Directors currently comprises two Executive Directors and two Non-Executive Directors, as further
detailed below. The Directors are of the opinion that the Board comprises a suitable balance of skills and
experience, and that the recommendations of the UK's Quoted Companies Alliance Corporate Governance
Guidelines for Small and Mid-Size Quoted Companies (the "QCA Code”) have been implemented to an
appropriate level for the Company.

Rashid Wally, Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Rashid Wally was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Chairman on 1 April 2017.
Rashid was previously the Chairman and member of the Audit Committee of Mango Airlines
{SOC) Ltd, a South African based low-cost scheduled airline.

In addition to his previous airline experience of mare than ten years, Rashid has a track record spanning over 38
years in the information technology sector having held various senior executive pasitions with 1BM in Africa,
Europe, the Middle East and Southeast Asia and Lenovo in Africa. He is highly regarded for his corporate
turnaround experience, having successfully compieted many restructuring projects in his previous roles. Rashid
aiso has significant corporate governance expertise which will benefit fastjet as it continues to expand and
develop.

As the Non-Executive Chairman, Rashid’s primary responsibility is the delivery of the Group’s corporate
governance model. The Chairman has a clear separation from day-to-day business of the Group which aliows
him to make independent decisions.

Other Group appointments:
- Director - Parrot Aviation {Proprietary) Limited
- Director - federal Airlines (Proprietary} Limited

Mark Hurst, Group Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Mark Hurst was appointed as a SAHL representative and Non-Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 2 July 2018. This role changed to that of Group Deputy CEO with
effect from 1 January 2019 and on 30 September 2019, Mark was appointed as the Group
Interim CEO. He was appointed as CEQ on 1 November 2021.

Mark holds significant aviation experience with particular expertise in fleet management, aircraft sourcing and
leasing as well as the development and implementation of operational efficiencies throughout the aviation value
chain.

He is highly regarded in the African aerospace secter for his track record in operational integrity, ability to
develop strategic operations in challenging environments and value and supply chain management. Mark
continues to serve as Group CEO of the Solenta Aviation Group.

Other Group appointments:

- Director - fastjet Mozambigue Limitada

- Director - Parrot Aviation {Proprietary} Limited

- Director - fastjet Africa {Proprietary) Limited

- Director - federal Airlines (Proprietary]) Limited

- Director - fastjet Zimbabwe Limited

- Director - Federal Air (Proprietary} Limited {Appointed 01 May 2023)
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Kris Jaganah, Group Chief Financial Officer

Kris Jaganah was appointed Chief Financial Officer on 5 April 2018 having joined the Company
in October 2018.

Kris brings several years of experience from the financial services, pharmaceutical and aviation
industries. During the past ten years prior to his appointment at fastjet he held the following roles:

Chief Financial Officer — Acia Aero Capital Limited

Senier Group Finance Manager — African Alliance Holdings Limited
Head of Financial Planning & Analysis — Aspen Global Incorporated
Head of back office operations — Superfund Advisory

He has a history of driving operational efficiencies across all functions and ensuring organisational goals are
measured within all companies he has been involved.

Kris Jaganah is a qualified Chartered Certified accountant.

Other Group appointments:

- Director - fastjet Africa (Proprietary} Limited

- Director - fastjet Mozambique Limitada

- Director — Federal Airlines (Proprietary) Limited (resigned on 30 August 2022)

Robert Burnham, Independent Non-Executive Director

Rabert Burnham has been an independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since May
2006 and is Chairman of the Safety Committee and the Remuneration Cornmittee. Rob has
held a variety of executive director and senior management positions in a number of iisted
companies both in the UK and USA.

Rob has undertaken lead roles in substantial merger and acquisition transactions and, as Chairman, led a flotation
on the London AIM market. He currently operates as a Management Consuitant advising businesses on building
enterprise value through profitable growth and staff professional development.
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Report of the Audit Committee
Purpose

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors to fulfil governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to fastjet’s financial reporting, internai controls, reviewing of the Company’s accounting standards, policies and
reports produced by internal and external audit function, risk management, reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company's anti-meney laundering systems and controls for the prevention of bribery,
reviewing reports on non-compliances; and overseeing the appointment of and the relationship with the
external auditor.

Composition and meetings

The Audit Committee currently comprises two members, Rashid Wally, who is a Non-Executive Independent
Director and the Company’s Chairman, and Mark Hurst, who is the Group Chief Executive Officer and acting Audit
Committee Chairman.

The committee meets formally at least once a year, and the Group Chief Financial Officer is required to attend
committee meetings. Robert Burnham was invited to attend one of the Audit Committee meetings, to approve
the Financial Statements. When required, external auditors are alse invited to join the meetings.

Year under review

In addition to the External Audit activity detailed below, the committee, during the period under review,
considered the following:

= The 2023 Corporate Plan, strategic direction, and budget.

* Quarterly performance for Group and its subsidiaries during 2022.

* The effectiveness of internal financial controls.

* Cashflows and the going concern of the company.

*  The external auditor’s audit report and key audit matters and concurred with the comments,
. Legal matters concerning the group.

*  Whistle-blowing complaints, if any.

* Corporate Governance recommendations.

External Audit

The committee has primary responsibility for overseeing the relationship with and the performance of the
Company’'s external auditors, presently BDO UK LLP. This includes making recommendations on their
reappeointment as set out in section 489 of the Companies Act 2006.

i
Mark Hurst

Acting Chairman of the Audit Committee
16 August 2023
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

Purpose

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to determine and agree with the Board the framework or broad
policy for the remuneration of the Company’s Chairperson and Board of Directors, reviewing the pay and
emoployment conditions across the Company including the Board of Directors, reviewing approving targets and
performance related pay schemes operated by the Company and all share incentive plans and pension
arrangements.

Composition and Meetings

The Remuneration Committee has two members, both of whom are Non-Executive Directers, Robert Burnham
(Remuneration Committee Chairman) and Rashid Wally.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. The CEQ attends meetings by standing invitation to
make proposals and to provide such information as the committee may require.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has agreed a policy designed to retain and attract individuals of the highest calibre in order to
ensure corporate success and therefore enhance shareholder value.

The overall approach is to attract, deveiop, motivate and retain such individuals at ail tevels by paying
competitive salaries and benefits to all staff. Pay levels are set to take account of contribution and individual
performance, and also with reference to relevant market information where available. The Company seeks to
reward its employees fairly and give them the opportunity to increase their earnings by linking pay to achieving
business and individual targets.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is set by the Remuneration Committee and the Board sets the
remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors. The Committee also monitors the level and structure of
remuneration for other senior executives and managers.

Bonus Policy

The criteria for Executive Director Bonus awards are set to reflect the achievement of strategic targets, both
short term and long term. During 2022, the targets were weighted to progressing towards long term goals,
building enterprise vatue, and thus directly delivering value to all the Company’s shareholders,

Refer to table below for performance bonuses that were paid in 2022 to the executives of fastjet Limited.
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Year under Review

During the year under review, the committee considered:
*  Salary and Bonus of the Executive Committee (“EXCO”) members;

Directors’ interests

The beneficial share interests of the Directors that served during the period are set out below:

31 December %31 December 2022 31 December
Name 2022 2021
No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares

. o o - of£1.00each ~  of £0.0001 each  of £0.0001 each
Kris jaganah 10,752 - 10,752,056
Robert Burnham - - 1,472

* On 29 September 2022, all shares of 0.0001 were consolidated into new ordinary shares of 1.00 each on the

basis of 1 {one) consolidated share for every 10,000 ordinary shares held.

Directors’ remuneration

Remuneration of those Directors’ serving, and whilst serving as Directors in the petiod, is analysed below.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Directors  Professionai

Salary Bonus Fees feas Benefits Total

Uss$'000 uUss'000 Uss’600 us$'000 USS'000 us$’000

Robert Burnham - - 40 - - a0

Rashid Wally - - 56 100 - 156

Mark Hurst 240* 222% - - - 462*

Kris Jaganah 144 115 - - - 259
“Total " 3sga 337 e 100 - 917

* Paid to Solenta Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd for services rendered by Mark Hurst as Group CEO.
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Salary Bonus Birectors Professional Benefits
Fees Total
fees

uss’000 Uss’oo0 Uss’000 Uss'000  UysSS$’000 Uss’000

Robert Burnham . - 43 - - 43
Rashid Wally . - 61 - - 61
Mark Hurst 240* 8* . - - 248*
Kris Jaganah 134 17 - - - 151
Total 374 25 104 - - 503

* Paid to Solenta Investment Holdings {Pty) Ltd for services rendered by Mark Hurst as Group CEO.
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Executive committee remuneration
During 2022, the Executive Committee (“EXCO”) comprised of the following:
*  Group Chief Executive Officer;
= Group Chief Financial Officer;
*  Group Chief Operating Officer;
*  Group Chief Commercial Officer; and
*  Deputy Grnugp Chief Financial Officer
The Group Chief Operating Officer was Danahue Cortes who is not a director of fastjet Limited.
The Group Chief Commercial Officer was Julian Edmunds who is not a director of fastjet Limited.

The Deputy Group Chief Financial Officer is Owen Nel who is not a director of fastjet Limited.

The total remuneration of the Executive Committee, including the Executive Directors detailed above, was
US$1.3m in 2022 {2021: US$0.7m).

Share options granted to Directors

Share options granted to those serving as Directors are shown below.

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
No. share No. share Exercise Date Exercise Date
Options options Price granted period renounced
01/04/18-
Rob Burnham 147 146,972 £1.025 01/04/15 01/04/25 -

The options issued in 2016 were issued under the existing aption schemes: The Tax Advantaged 2015 C50P
Scheme and the Non-Tax Advantaged 2015 Scheme.

Kk A

Robert Burnham
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
16 August 2023
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Other Committees
Nomination Committee

Purpose

The purpose of the Nomination Commistee is to review, develop and maintain an effective and compliant
framework for making recommendations on the appointment and reappointment of members to the board
of fastjet Limited. The Committee is responsible for regularly reviewing the structure, size, and composition
{including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity} of the Board and making recommendations to the
Board with regard to any changes, succession planning and vacancies at Board level.

Composition and Meetings

The Nomination Committee has two members, both of whom are Non-Executive Directors. The current
members of the Nomination Committee are Rashid Wally, the Nomination Committee Chairman and Rob
Burnham. The Nomination Committee did not meet in 2022 as no new nominations were considered. The
appointment of Mark Hurst as Group Chief Executive Officer was not considered separately by the
Nomination Commitiee as it was approved by the board as a whole.

Safety Committee

Purpose

The Safety Committee is responsible for monitoring the governance of safety and security management within
the airiine, ensuring that safety risks and security threats are adequately monitored, and that sufficient resources
exist to ensure that management and reporting within the Group is maintained at a suitable level.

Composition and Meetings

The Safety Committee currently comprises Robert Burnham, the Safety Committee Chairman, Mark Hurst, the
Group Chief Executive Officer and, Donahue Cortes, the Group Chief Operating Officer, although all Board
members are invited to attend meetings. The Safety Committee meets at least four times a year and receives a
formal Safety Report on a monthiy basis.

Executive Committee (“EXCO")

Purpose

The Executive Comsmittee’s primary responsibilities are to implement the business plan agreed by the Board,
review the operating performance of each Group company, manage the Group’s strategic planning process and
corporate acquisitions and disposal programme, monitor and approve tapital expenditure and contracts within
delegated limits entered into by the Group, and to manage the Group’s HR policies.

Composition and Meetings

The Executive Committee comprises the Group Chief Executive Officer, the Group Chief Financial Officer, the
Group Chief Commercial Officer, the Group Chief Operating Officer, and the Deputy Group Chief Financial Officer.
The Executive Committee meets as and when required.

By order of the Board
Ben Harber
Company Secretary
16 August 2023
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Directors’ Report

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of fastjet Limited present the Annual Report and the audited Financial Statements for the
ended 31 December 2022.

The current Board of Directors of the Company are refiected in the Corporate Governance section on pages
35 - 36.

Results and Dividends

The consotidated income statement is set out on page 51 and has been prepared in US$, the functional and
reporting currency of the Company and the consolidated Group.

The Group's net profit after taxation for the year for continuing activities was US510.7m {2021: US54.3m).

Ne dividends have been paid or proposed in the current year or in the prior year.

Political donations and expenditure

fastjet works constructively with relevant ministries, civil aviation authorities and other government bodies in
each country where it operates, regardless of political affiliation. fastjet believes in the rights of individuals to

engage in the demacratic process, however it is fastjet’s policy not to make pelitical donations or get involved in
politics.

There were no political donations made or political expenditure incurred during the 2022 and 2021 financial
years.

Specific risks — currency, liquidity, credit, interest rate and capital management

Information on the above specific risks can be found in Note 23 in the Notes to the Consolidated financial
statements.

Post balance sheet events

Post balance sheet events are shown in the Strategic Report on page 30 and at Note 26 in the Notes to the
Consolidated financial statements.

Outlook for 2023

These are detailed in the Strategic Report on page 11.

Research and development
No research and development is undertaken by fastjet.

Existence of branches

fastjet Zimbabwe established a branch in South Africa in July 2023 to meet local South African Reserve Bank
(SARB) exchange control requirements within South Africa.
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Directors’ Report
Employment of disabled persans

fastjet treats applicants with disabilities equally and supports current employees who become disabled. This
includes offering flexibility and making reasonable adjustments to the workplace to ensure they can achieve their
full potential.

However, for fastjet’s pilots and cabin crew, there are a range of strict regulatary requirements on heafth and
physicat ability with which all applicants and current empiayees must comply.

Equal opportunity employer

fastjet ensures that all employees are fairly compensated for work done and equal opportunities are extended
to all employees. fastjet Human Resources policies, including but not limited to those that relate to recruitment,
training, remuneration and benefits, are based on individual qualifications and performance.

fastjet is committed to treating employees equally, regardless of age, disability, gender reassignment, marital or
civil partner status, pregnancy or maternity, race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion or belief,
sex ar sexual arientation {the Protected Characteristics). The relevant policies set out the Company’s approach
to equal opportunities and the avoidance of discrimination at work. It applies to all aspects of employment.

Communication with employees is key, and the Executive management team and Directors foliow a policy of
keeping all employees informed of strategic, commercial, financial and human resources matters,

Employee engagement and communication policies

fastjet regularly engages with its employees in each country to discuss the ongoing strategies and business
objectives and how the company plans to achieve these. These sessions are interactive, and management
encourages and welcomes employee feedback on the topics discussed and other ways to improve the overall
fastjet business.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance cover

Insurance cover was established for all Directors to provide cover against their reasonable actions on behalf of
the Group. The indemnities, which constitute a gualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined by section
234 of the Companies Act 2006, were in force during the 2018 and 2019 financial year and remained in force for
everyone who is or was a Director of the Company up to 21 june 2019, after which the policy expired.

insurers at the time of renewal were reluctant to renew the Group D & O insurance palicy for a further ane-year
period after 21 June 2019, as they had concerns around the possible insolvency of the Company after significant
negative media coverage and the Group’s inability to confirm longer term going concern without further

additional capital raises or support from shareholders.

Currently there is no active Group D & Q insurance policy in place.

Provision of information to auditors

So far as each of the Directors is aware at the time this report is approved:
* there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and

* the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant augit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.
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Directors’ Report

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Disclosures (SECR})

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting is a new government reporting programme that came into force on 1
April 2019,

For the purposes of the SECR report, the Group has defined its carbon footprint as a measure of the amount of
carbon dioxide {CO2) released into the atmosphere as a result of its activities. Our carbon footprint is calculated
and expressed as a suite of carbon diexide equivalents (CO2e) figures in metric tonnes.

The Group's carbon footprint is therefore made up of two parts, direct and indirect emissions.
Direct emissions

Direct emissions are produced by sources which are owned or controlled by the reporting organisation and
include electricity use, burning oil or gas for heating, and fuel consumption as a result of business travel or
distribution. Direct emissions correspond to elements within scopes 1, 2 and 3 of the World Resources Institute
Greenhguse Gas {GHG) Protocol, as indicated below.

* Emissions arising from fuet consumption used to operate fiights;

=  Electricity, heat or steam generated on-site;

* Natural gas, gas oil, LPG or coal use attributable to Company-owned facilities;
*  (Company-owned vehicle travel;

*  Production of any of the six GHGs (CO2, CH4, N20, HFCs, PFCs and SFg); and
* Consumption of purchased electricity.

indirect emissions

indirect emissions result from a company’s upstream and downstream activities. These are typically from
outsourced/contract manufacturing, and products and the services offered by the organisation. Indirect
emissions correspond to scope 3 of the World Resources Institute GHG Protocol excluding employee business
travel as indicated below.

* Employee commuting;
*+ Transportation of an organisation’s products, materials or waste by another organisation;

*  Qutsourced activities, contract manufacturing and franchises GHG emissions from waste generated by
the organisaticn but managed by another organisation;

*  GHG emissions from the use and end-of-life phases of the organisation’s products and services;

*  GHG emissions arising from the production and distribution of energy products, other than electricity,
steam and heat, consumed by the organisation;

*  GHG emissions from the production of purchased raw or primary materials; and
*  GHG emissions arising from the transmission and distribution of purchased electricity.

Below is a brief outline of the methodology used to generate various figures for fastjet Limited and its
subsidiaries.
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Directors’ Report

Data collection

Fuel: This was collected from reports provided by the businesses fuel providers.
Electricity consumption: This was collected from billing data form suppliers.
Carbon conversion

To perform the carbon conversion, we utilised the government conversian factors for company reporting of

greenhouse gas emissions found here htips. //www gov.uk/government/collections/government-conyersion-
factors-for-company-reporting.

The table below shows the information for the group from the 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2022.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Activity 2022 2021

Tonnes CO2e Tonnes COZe

Emissions from aircraft fuel 53,275 28,680

Emissions from purchased electricity 69 74
- s33aa 28754

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions Kwh 420,896,836,668 226,586,391,503

Intensity Metric

We use an intensity metric based on the carbon efficiency of our airline. This is expressed as grams of carbon
dioxide equivalent {(gCO2e) per revenue passenger kilometre {RPK).

2022 2021
Tonnes CO2e gCO2e
Carbon emissions/revenue passenger km 0.0222 0.0290

Intensity metric
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Directors’ Report

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and have elected to prepare the parent Company financial statements in accordance
with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and
company and of the praofit or loss of the Group and Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:
. select suitable accounting poticies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. for the Group Financial Statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. for the parent Company Financial Statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Website publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and the financial staterments are made available on
a website. Financial statements are published on the Company's website in accordance with legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website is the responsibility
of the Directors. The Directors' responsibility also extends to the ongeing integrity of the financial statements
contained therein.

The Annual Report and audited Financial Statements on pages 51- 119 were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors and are signed on their behalf by:

P

Rashid Wally
Chairman
16 August 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of fastjet Limited

Opinion on the financial statements
In our epinien:

* thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s
affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,;

* the financial staterents have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Fastjet Limited {“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise the Consolidated income statement , the
Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the Consolidated balance sheet, the Consolidated cash
flow statement, the Consolidated statement of changes in equity, the Parent company baiance sheet, the Parent
Company statement of changes in equity, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financiat Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationa! Standards on Auditing (UK) (I15As (UK}} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or coliectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Company's ability
to continue as a going concern for a peried of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of fastjet Limited

Other information

The Directors are respansible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report and Financial Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinion on the financia! statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therean.

Qur responsibifity is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

= the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
reguirements.

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report or the
Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the foliowing matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the Parent Company financial statements are notin agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or

* certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liguidate the Group or the
Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of fastjet Limited

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurante, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
frem fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregutarities, incluging fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed betow:

*  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatery frameworks that are apolicable to the
company and group. We have determined that the most significant are directly relevant to specific
assertions in the financial statements and are those related to the reporting frameworks, with the
Companies Act 2006, and tax related legislation {the Finance Act);

*  We tested the company’s and group’s compliance with these laws and reguiations through our audit
procedures over the financial statements and the related tax balances including agreeing the disclosures
in the financial statements to underlying support and reviewing VAT and employee tax submissions;

*  We enquired with management, and those charged with governance, as to whether there were known
or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or fraud, and reviewed minutes of
meetings to corroborate their responses;

*  We assessed the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, including fraud and
coensidered the fraud risk areas to me management override of controls and recognition of revenue (cut-
off}):

*  We challenged assumptions made by management in their significant accounting estimates;

*  We identified and tested a sample of journal entries with unusual characteristics - in particular any
material journal entries, manual postings to revenue and cash, and journals with selected key words -
to supperting documentation;

* Weidentified a potential fraud risk in revenue for premature recognition of revenue and addressed this
through cut-off testing for a defined period before and after year end, by vouching a sample of revenue
to flight manifests to confirm the flight date;

= We communicated relevant identified laws and regulatiens and potential fraud risks to all engagement
team members and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and
regulations throughout the audit; and

* We provided group instructions to component auditors and reviewed their work to ensure that the
procedures listed above were also performed for each significant component.

Cur audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstaterment due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery,
misrepresentations or through coliusion. There are inherent {imitations in the audit procedures performed and
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in
the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware of it.

A further description of cur responsibilities is availaile an the Financial Reparting Council’s website at:
httns://www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsigilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of fastjet Limited

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility te anyone other than the Parent
Company and the Parent Company’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, ar for the opinions
we have formed.

DocuSigned by:

Pwen Ptifar

823F4A20R9CA448.

Owen Pettifor (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Gatwick, UK

Date: 17 August 2023

BDO LLP is a limited liabitity partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Note Uss$000 Uss$’000
Revenue 4 64,057 27,914
Cost of sales [ {51,540} {27,265}
Gross profit 12,517 649
Other operating income ' 7 9,875 13,834
Administrative costs ) {11,466) {8,769)
Impairment loss reversal 12 1,172 -
Operating profit 5 12,098 5,714
Finance income 9 a6 26
Finance charges 9 {1,305) (1,800}
Profit from continuing activities before tax 10,339 3,940
Taxation 10 {131} 410
Profit from continuing activities after tax o 10,708 ' h7,350
Loss from discontinued activities net of tax 3 {15) {4,341)
Profit for the year 10,693 9
Attributable to:

Sharehoiders of the parent company 10,693 9
10,693 9

Profit per share (basic and diluted) (US$) 11
From continuing activities 28.40 0.00
From discontinued activities 0.00 (.00
Total 28.40 0.00

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financia! statements.
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Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
uss’000 Uss'000
Profit for the year - 10,693 9
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on translation of continuing cperations 712 536
- Translation reserve taken to income statement on
disenntinued subsidiaries - 4,980
Total other comprehensive income for the year o - 5,516
Total comprehensive income 11,405 5,525
Attributable to:
_Sharehaolders of the parent company 11,405 5,525
Total comprehensive income 11,405 5,525

The accompanying accounting poticies and notes ferm part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated balance sheet
T Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Note s$'000 USS'D00
Non-current assets
intangible assets 12 5,195 4,533
Property, plant and equipment 13 10,988 11,583
Right - of - use assets 14 2,356 1,213
18,539 17,329
Current assets
lnventory - 112
Trade and other receivables 15 16,409 7.614
Cash and cash eguivalents 16 7,822 4,406
Assets classified as held for sale 3 - 74 - 96
24,305 12,228
Total assets 42,844 29,557
Equity
Share capital 20 192,130 192,130
Share premium account 20 216,638 216,638
Reverse acquisition reserve 11,906 11,906
Retained earnings (396,545} (407,238)
Transiation reserve 1,989 1,277
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company . 26,118 14,713
Total equity ] 26,118 14,713
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and other borrowings 18 2,436 2,983
. Deferred tax liability 19 1,556 1,566
Lease liabilities 14 1,409 1,100
5,401 5,649
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 9,757 7,427
Loans and other borrowings 18 464 1,425
Lease liabitities 14 1,082 218
Liabilities refated to assets classified as held for sale 3 22 125
11,325 9,195
Total liabilities 16,726 14,844
Total liabilities and equity 42,844 29,557

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Directors and are signed on their

behalf by:

1

!

oL
-

Rashid Wally
Chairman
16 August 2023

Mark Hurst

16 August 2023

k.

Group Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated cash flow statement

el

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Note us$’000 Uss'000
Operating activities
Profit for the year 10,653 9
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Loss from discontinued activities 15 4,341
Depreciation of aircraft 6 3,608 3,032
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment 6 174 98
Depreciation of right- of- use assets 6 635 177
Amortisation of AOC 12 491 491
Amortisation of other intangible assets 12 - 14
Taxation 10 131 (410)
Amortisation of FedAir brand 12 19 19
Reversal of impairment loss 12 {1,172) -
Finance charges 24 235 334
Profit on dispasal of assets 7 (576} -
Changes in working capital:
Decrease in inventory 113 -
(Increase) in trade and other receivables {8,695) (2,342)
Increase / {Decrease) in trade and other payables 2,201 (83)
Cash generated in operating activities 7,872 5,680
Cash ytilised in discontinued activities - {476)
Net cash generated in operating activities 7,872 5,204
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,540} (4,045)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 1,920 -
Net cash flow from investing activities {2,620) (4,045)
Financing activities
Issue of shares (fastjet Limited) - 1,641
Loan repayment — 5SCG (fastjet Limited} 24 {502) {250)
Instalment sale liabilities repayments 24 (965) (126)
Instalment sale liability advanced 24 157 -
Lease liahilities payments 14 {568) (115)
Lease liabilities interest paid 14 (123) (68)
Interest paid on loans 24 {235} (377)
Loan repayment — SAHL (fastjet Limited) - (600)
Loan repayments — COVID related (FedAir) 24 (145) (106)
Net cash flow from financing activities (2,381) (1)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 2,871 1,158
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 545 (112)
Opening net cash 4,406 3,360
Closing net cash 16 7,822 4,406




rastpet tamnted and it supsidaty wndertak nas 55
Arcga! Report and Financial Statements for the vear saded 31 Derambe: 20527
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Reverse
Share Share Treasury Acquisition Translation Retained
Capital Premium Shares Reserve Reserve Earnings  Equity
Us$'000  USS°000  USS000 U55'000 Us5°000 Us$'000 USS’000
Balance at 31 December 2020 192,077 215,050 (288) 11,906 {3,239)  {407,247) 7,259
Exercise of warrants 53 1,588 - - - - 1,641
EBT dissolved 288 - - 288
Transactions with owners 53 1,588 288 - - 1,929
Profit for the year - - - - - 9 9
- Exchange differences - - - - 536 - 536
- Exchange differences on
translation of discontinued
operations recycled to income
statement - - - - 4,980 - 4,880
Total comprehensive profit for
the year - - - - 5,516 5 5,525
Balance at 31 December 2021 192,130 216,638 - 11,906 1,277 {407,238) 14,713
Transactions with owners e e o -
Profit for the year - - - 10,693 10,693
- Exchange differences - - - - 712 - 712
- Exchange differences on
translation of discontinued
operations recycled to income
statement ) - - - o - - -
Total comprehensive profit for
the year - - - 712 10,693 11,405
Balance at 31 December 2022 192,130 216,638 - 11,906 1,989 {396,545) 26,118
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Significant accounting policies

fastjet Limited is the Groug's parent company. It is incorporated in England and Wales. The address of its
registered office is the 6th Floor 60 Gracechurch Street, London, EC3V OHR.

The Company’s shares were quoted on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange throughout 2019 and up
to 06:00pm on Friday 21 August 2020. Thereafter and effective 07:00am Monday 24 August 2020, the shares
were delisted and now can be traded privately via the Asset Match trading platform, www.assetmatch.com.

Holding Company

l[astjet Limited’s holding company is Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited (“SAHL"), a Maltese company, registered
under company number C 86476, of registered office 4th Floor, Avantech Building, St lulian’s Read, San Gwann,
SGN 2805, Malta. Soienta Aviation Holdings Limited held 67% of the group’s equity as at 31 December 2022
(2021: 67%).

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards. On
31 December 2020, IFRS as adopted by the European Union at that date was brought into UK law and became
UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, with future changes being subject to endorsement by the UK
Endorsement Board. fastjet transitioned to UK-adopted International Accounting Standards in its consolidated
financial statements on 1 January 2022. This change constitutes a change in accounting framework. However,
there is no impact on recognition, measurement or disclosure in the period reported as a result of the change in
framework.

The significant accounting policies are set out beflow and have, unless otherwise stated, been applied
consistently, in all material respects, throughout all periods presented in these financial statements.

Presentation of results

On 31 December 2021 the Group decided to close fastjet Zambia, EBT Trust, fastjet Mozambique and fastjet
Africa as further described in Note 3. The closure of these entities resulted in a loss from discontinued operations
of US515k {2021:U54.3m) {see Note 3).

NEAICOMEBNY NG 20T, g aolees ard hotes T pa of inase francas state ents



Fantet iy ted 1vd s subsiguar s sode e s )

Arrag Aeport antd STt Odi Stateent, for 1o vear opded 31 Decomber 2022
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Functional and presentation currencies

All amounts are presented in US dollars (USS), being the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s
presentation currency. The USS functional currency is a consequence of the majority of the Group’s sales and
cost of sales are influenced by, denominated in and settled in USS. In preparing the financial statements of the
individuat companies, transactions denominated in foreign currencies in that country are translated into the
respective functional currency of the Group entities using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions.

The functional currency of the various Group subsidiary companies were assessed to be as follows:

- fastjet Zimbabwe is USS;

- federal Airlines (“FedAir”) is South African Rand;
- fastjet Limited is USS;

- fastjet Africa is South African Rand;

- fastjet Mozambique is Mozambican metical; and
- fastjet Zambia is Zambian kwacha.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the historical rate. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at
the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items,
are included in the income statement for the period. Exchange differences arising on translating foreign cash
balances are shown as finance income or expense.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are transiated at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Incorme and expense are translated
.at the monthly average exchange rates. Exchange differences arising, if any, are ciassified in equity and are
transferred to the Group’s foreign currency transiation reserve within equity. Such translation is recognised as
income or as expense in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Subsidiaries within the Group hold menetary intercompany balances for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur in the foreseeable future and thus are considered to be part of the Group’s net investment in the
relevant subsidiary. Due to the equity-like nature of these balances, any exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised on consolidation directly into equity through the Consolidated Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, only being recognised in the Consaolidated Income Statement on the disposal of the net
investment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Functional and presentation currencies continued

The following table presents the monthly average rates for the year ended 31 December 2022:

S

Month South | Mozambican Zambian | Zimbabwean

African Rand Metical Kwacha Daollars
January 15,5061 63,7721 17,2424 109,7052
February 15,2221 63,7781 18,1152 119,7082
March 14,9889 63,7750 17,9538 130,0958
April 14,8865 63,7696 17,4661 146,5649
May 15,8836 63,7758 17,1153 192,2399
June 15,8007 63,8093 17,0276 332,3142
July 16,8387 63,8102 16,5151 390,6673
August 16,6920 63,8151 16,1447 482,6640
September 17,5462 | 63,8304 15,6654 587.6786
October 18,1219 63,8291 15,9550 627,1481
November 17,4893 ; 63,8452 16,5567 634,0001
December 17,2993 | 63,8329 17,6024 666,3208

The following table present the monthly average rates for the year ended 21 December 2021:

Month South African Mozambican Zambian | Zimbabwean

Rand Metical Kwacha Dollars
January 15.4841 73.5220 20.8567 81,6652
February 15.4841 73.8335 21.1536 82.0036
March 15.2906 73.8335 22.1959 §2.38383
April 14.4293 73.8599 22.4433 84.4904
May 14,0858 61.7411 22,6124 84.6139
June 14.1161 58.9044 21.8664 85.0675
July 14.4955 63.0564 18.6097 85.2492
August 14.7795 63.6158 16.3506 85.7177
September 14.5490 63.6943 17.0288 86.3315
October 14 8376 63.6943 17,5639 89.8541
November 15.5340 63.6943 16.8391 102.2071
December 15.8685 | 63.7920 20.8567 107.7984

]

The following table gives the exchange rates that has been used to translate

foreign businesses to USS as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

the assets and

liabilities of key

Year 2022

Year 2021

Currency

South African Rand
Mozambican Metical
Zambian Kwacha
Zimbabwean Dollars

Batance Sheet (closing rate)

Balance Sheet {closing rate) |
£

17,0068
64,1026
18,1159
671,7511

15.9236
63.8224
16.6514
108.6660

TUg ACComany TG 2LenatLag pone-es and notes form part of these nhancal statame s
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Going Concern

The continued operations of the Group operated at a profit and generated a positive cash inflow during 2022.
The main driver of the positive cash inflow in 2022 was accessing the funds recognised under the Legacy Loan
facility as well as the business generating operating profits.

Other significant risks remain associated with operating airlines and business in Africa including but not limited
to political, judicial, administrative, fiscal and other regulatory matters. Many countries in Africa, including those
in which the Group currently operate may in the future experience severe socig-economic hardship and political
instability, including political unrest and government change.

The commitment of local business community, government officials and agencies and the judicial system to abide
by legai requirements and negotiated agreements may be more uncertain, creating concerns with respect to
licences and agreements for business which may be susceptible to delay, revision or cancellation, as a result of
which legal redress may be uncertain or delayed.

fastjet Limited is the holding company of the Group and its expenses are funded through the activities of the
subsidiary companies. As a result, the going concern assumption has been assessed as part of its function within
the wider group as explained above including the conciusion.

From 2023 onwards as the Group is forecast to generate positive cash inflow from normal trading operations,
no longer accessing the Legacy Loan facility will have no impact on the Group.

The Directors believe, based on current financial projections and funds available, that the Group and Company
will have enough resources to meet its operational needs and to make required repayments on the debt facilities
over the relevant period, being at least until August 2024. Accordingly, in preparing these Financial Statements,
the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis.

The key assumptions applied by the Directors in the preparation of the detailed cash flow forecasts, which form
the basis of this forecast are:

* Flight operations for FedAir continuing on the same trend as experienced in 2022; and
= Zimbabwe continue to be a net cash generating unit,

The Directors have considered a number of risks in preparing these forecasts, including inter alia:
* Adverse currency exchange rate movements.
The key sensitivities to the underlying detailed cash flow forecasts are as follows:

* Load factors dropping by 10% from the forecast of around 75%. The effect of this on forecast cashfiow
over the next 12 months would be a decrease in cashflow of US57.6m;

. Drop in average ticket prices by 10% over the next 12 months. The effect on the forecast will be a
decrease in cashflow of around US$7.6m; and

*  Price of crude oil increasing by 10% compared to the current price forecasted of US594 a barrel The
effect of this on forecast cashfiow over the next 12 months would be a decrease in cashflow of US$2.4m.

These mostly external risks do show high leve! of sensitivity of the forecasts to the key assumptions described
above, however none of the sensitivities indicate a potential negative cashflow.

Trs 3CneMeAan,; T3 atnt. 1G 20 as 4rd nies o 0atl oF insse frarnal slaemients
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

New accounting standards, interpretations and amendments

The Group applied the following standards, amendments and interpretations for the first time for the year ended
31 December 2022:

* Annual Improvements to IFRS: 2018 — 2020 Cycle;

*  Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting {Amendments to {FRS 3});

* IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets {Amendment — Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract); and

* |AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (Amendment — Proceeds before intended Use).

Based on the assessment performed, these had no material impact on the Group.
Recent accounting developments

The foilowing new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been
published but are not yet effective and have not been applied early by the Group in these financial statements.

The following are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

*  Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction Amendments to IAS 12 -
effective 01 January 2023;

*  Definition of accounting estimates. Amendments to IAS 8 - effective 01 January 2023;

* Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current Amendment to IAS 1 - effective 01 January 2024

* IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - effective 01 January 2023;

* IFRS 16 Leases (Amendment — Liability in a Sale and Leaseback) — effective 01 January 2024;

*  |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendment — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current) — effective 01 January 2024, and

* |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {(Amendment — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants) —
effective 01 January 2024.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights. The
acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated firancial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and
any related non-controlling interest (“NCI”) and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

(e acoompanying acsolr $1g po-0es and notes form cact of rmese financal staremeants
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Business combinations

The Group accounts for the acguisition of subsidiaries and businesses using the purchase method. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values of assets given and equity instruments issued, plus
any liabilities assumed. The acquired entities” assets, liabilities and contingent fiabilities that meet the recognition
criteria set out in IFRS 3 {Revised) are recognised at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the Group's interest in the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Cost comprises the fair value of assets given, liabilities assumed, and equity instruments issued, plus the amount
of any non-contralling interests in the acquiree plus, if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair
value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree. Contingent consideration is included in cost at its acquisition
date fair value and, in the case of contingent consideration ciassified as a financial fiability, remeasured
subsequently through profit or lass.

Goodwill is capitalised as an intangible asset with any impairment in carrying value being charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid, the excess is credited in full to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on the acquisition date.

The interest of non-contralling interests in the acquired entities is initially measured at the non-contralling
party’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or has been abandoned,
or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal, if before balance sheet, or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale when:
*  They are available for immediate sale;
. Management is committed to a plan to sell;
* [tis unlikely that significant changes to the plan wiil be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;
*  An active programme to locate a buyer has been initiated,
* The asset or disposal group is being marketed at a reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and
= Asale is expected to complete within 12 months from the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of:
*  Their carrying amount immediately prior to being classified as held for sale in accordance with the
group's accounting policy; and
*  Fairvalue less costs of disposal.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-current assets (including those in a disposal group) are not
depreciated.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Discontinued operations (continued)

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the statement of comprehensive income is re-
presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative period. Discontinued
operations are presented in the consclidated income staterment as a single line which comprises the post-tax
profit or loss of the discontinued operation along with the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the re-
measurement to fair value less costs to sell or on disposal of the assets or disposal Groups constituting
discontinued operations.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, piant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any provision for
impairment. Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual value,
over the useful economic life of that asset as follows:

Owned aircraft - 25 years

Leasehold property - term of the lease

Motoer vehicles - 4 years

Fixtures, fittings and office equipment -4 to 7 years

Plant and machinery - 10 years
Aircraft

Residuat vatues, where applicable, are reviewed annually against prevailing market rates at the balance sheet
date for equivalently aged assets and depreciation rates adjusted accordingly on a prospective basis. The carrying
value is reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable.

Aircraft purchased with some economic life expired are depreciated over the remaining econecmic life.
Subseguent costs incurred which iend enhancement to future periods, such as long-term scheduled maintenance
and major overhaul of aircraft and engines are capitalised and depreciated over the length of period benefiting
from these enhancements. All cther maintenance costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Each component of an item of aircraft and other fixed assets with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item is depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss
unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

On acquisition, each aircraft is split into its component assets, being each of its engines and its airframes. Major
engine maintenance incurred by the company is capitalised into the cost of each engine asset. Depreciation of
Airframe and Landing Gear is provided on the straight-line method and depreciation of aircraft engines (Engine
Overhaul or Shop Restoration, plus Engine Hot Section Inspection and Auxiliary Power Unit} is provided on the
sum-of-units method to write off the cost of each asset to its residual values over the estimated useful life.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Aircraft fleet Airframe ! Engine Overhaul / Engine Landing Gear ! Auxiliary
Shop Restoration ? Hot Section Power Unit
o Inspection ? L (“APU")?
Embraer 145 25 years 7,000 Hours n/a 144 months 5,000 Hours
C208B Fleet 25 years 3,600 Hours 1,800 Hours n/a nfa
C208B FX Fleet 25 years 4,000 Hours 2,000 Hours n/a n/a
PC12 Fleet 25 years 3,500 Hours 2,000 Hours nfa n/a

! Depreciated on the straight-line method.
% Depretiated on the sum-of-units method (per hour flown / utilized).

The ACIoroany'ng ACSo . rTrg coLoies and noles formi part of trese tmancial staremaris
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) are recognised at cost less accumulated amoertisation charges and any
provision for impairment, or they are deemed to have an indefinite economic life and are not amortised but
tested annually for impairment or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable.

Intangible assets are recognised an business combinations if they are separabie from the acquired entity or give
rise to other contractualflegal rights. The amounts ascribed to such intangibles are arrived at by using
appropriate valuation techniques.

Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis, as foliows:

Air Qperator Certificates (AQCs) - 10 years
Brand licence agreerment - 10 years
Purchased brand - Indefinite
Computer software - 4 years

The purchased brand was purchased from easyGroup Holdings Limited. It is considered to have an indefinite
life because there is no foreseeable limit to the cashflows generated from the fastjet brand.

Impairment of assets

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment,
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

All individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets’ or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell, To determine the recoverable amount, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-
generating unit and determines a suitable discount rate in order 1o calculate the present value of those cash
fiows.

The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget,
adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors
are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and refiect their respective risk profiles as assessed by
management.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce the recognised value of assets in the cash-generating unit.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no
longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its
carrying amount. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss, except to the extent they reverse gains
previously recognised in other comprehensive income. An impairment charge on the value of goodwill cannot
be reversed in a subsequent period.

This is evaluated for impairment yearly and if an impairment has occurred, then a joss must be recognised.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Leases
Identifying leases

The Group accounts for a contract, or a portion of a contract, as a lease when it conveys the right to use an asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Leases are those contracts that satisfy the following criteria:

{a) There is an identified asset;
{b) The Group obtains substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset; and
{r) The Group has the right to direct use of the asset.

All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:

* Leases of low vaiue assets; and
* Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

The Group leases aircraft with contract terms less than 12 months. These are short term leases, and the Group
has taken the short-term exemption inciuded in IFRS 16 and expensed the costs through the profit and loss
account in the period in which they are incurred. These leases included variable lease payments that are linked
to the future performance of use of an underlying asset in the form of flight hours and these variable payments
are recognised when the performance or use occurs. The amount relating to aircraft leases that was expensed
in the current year is US$2.0m.

Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives
received, and increased for:

* lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;

* initial direct costs incurred; and

*  the amount of any provision recognised where the group is contractually required to dismantle, remove
or restore the leased asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the lessee uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing
sources and makes certain adjustments to refiect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabitities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on
the balance outstanding and are reduced for !ease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a
straight-tine basis over the remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the probability
of a lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability
to reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate. The
carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate orindex is revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being
amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term.

Tre aciompanying accouning oo cies ard nates oo zart of tiese inancial siamments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Leases (continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting depends on the
nature of the modification:

= if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as
a separate lease in accordance with the above policy.

* in all other cases where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension
to the lease term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using
the discaunt rate applicable on the modification date, with the right-of use asset being adjusted by the
same amount.

* iftherenegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease
liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial of full
termination of the lease with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then further
adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicabie on the
maodification date. The right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.

Revenue

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over goods and services to a customer. Revenue is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. Revenue for the provision of air
travel is recognised on the date of departure. Ancillary fees such as baggage fees, credit card fees and flight
alteration fees are also recognised on the date of departure as these are not considered distinct because the
customer cannot benefit from it without taking the flight.

The Group incurs costs to obtain a customer contract that would otherwise not have been incurred. Such costs
include travel agency fees and other commissions paid and global distribution systems (“GDS”) booking fees. The
Group has elected to apply the optional practical expedient for costs to abtain a contract which allows the Group
to immediately expense contract costs {included under employee benefits and part of cost of sales) because the
amortisation period of the asset that the Group otherwise would have used is one year or less.

For shuttle and charter, clients are invoiced at an agreed rate, based on the higher of actual aircraft utilisation
during the actual flight and a minimum fixed amount quoted per shuttle ticket or charter flight. Revenue is only
recognised in the income statement when the actual flight has been perfermed. Any amounts received prior to
flight date are recorded as creditors under deferred income. See Note 17.

Other operating income

Other operating income arises mainly from other sources which do not form part of the Group’s passenger
revenue generating activities including advertising and marketing income, maintenance recharges and fuel
recoveries. Since this is not considered to be part of the main revenue stream, the Group presents this income
separately from revenue. The performance obligation arises at a point in time and the revenue is recognised
once the performance obligation is satisfied.

Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Costis determined using the weighted average
cost method. Inventory comprises aircraft general spares and rotables. Inventory excludes borrowing costs and
freight. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
to completion and applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Pension costs

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have na legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement in
the periods during which sarvices are rendered by employees.

Taxation

Current tax is the tax currently payable or receivable based on the result for the period.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences. Deferred tax is
generally provided on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases.
However, deferred tax is not provided on the initial recognition of goodwitl, nor on the initial recognition of an
asset or liability unless the related transaction is a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit.
Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with shares in subsidiaries is not provided if reversal of these
temporary differences can be controlled by the Group and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the
foreseeable future. In addition, tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other income tax credits to
the Group are assessed for recognition as deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided in full, with no discounting. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the underlying deductible temporary differences will be able to be offset against future
taxable income. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at tax rates that are expected to
apply to their respective period of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in the income
statement, except where they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to equity in which case the
related deferred tax is alsa charged or credited directly to equity.

Share-based payments
Employee benefits

The company operates equity-settled share-based remuneration plans for certain empioyees (including
Directors).

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, together with a corresponding increase in equity, based upon the Company’s estimate of the number of
shares that will vest.

Fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The expected life used in the model is adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the fair values of
employees’ services are determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of the instrument granted to the
employee. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received net of attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital, and where appropriate to share premium.

The aTIompanyng 3CeCailrg soneas and noms form part of inese Thared sratemer s
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share-based payment arrangements in which the company receives goods or services as consideration for its
own equity instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions, regardless of
how the equity instruments are obtained by the Company. Share based payments are measured by reference to
the fair value of goods or services received.

Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits.
Equity

Equity comprises the foliowing:

= "Share capital” represents the nominal value of equity shares that have been issued.

* "Share premium" represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of consideration received for
equity shares, net of expenses of the share issue.

* "Retained earnings" mostly comprise all current and prior period results as disclosed in the income
statement as well as costs taken directly to equity.

*  “Translation reserve” represents the cumulative amount of foreign exchange gains and losses recognised
outside of retained earnings.

* “Reverse acquisition reserve” represents the difference between the net assets assumed and the cost of
the investment on combination of Rubicon and Lonrho’s reserves in 2012.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recegnised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at fair value through profit and loss:

- It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cashflows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost:

These assets arise principally from the provision of goods and services to customers (e.g. trade receivables), but
also incorporate other types of financial assets where the objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. They are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributabie to their acquisition or issue
and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for
impairment.

CITToany tAUso.TT NG 30 TS 271 roles for part oF nese Frantial slaeme s



fasyet tir tod and its subs.adry andortakings o3
Anpyal Reporr ang e

wWial SETements for the pone smfed 31 Docemosr 2027

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment provisions for current and nen-current trade receivables are recognised based on the simplified
approach within IFRS 9 using a provision matrix in the determination of the lifetime expected credit losses.
During this process the probability of the non-payment of the trade receivables is assessed. This probability is
then multiplied by the amount of the expected loss arising from default to determine the lifetime expected credit
loss for the trade receivables. For trade receivables, which are reported net, such provisions are recorded in a
separate provision account with the loss being recognised within cost of sales in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. On confirmation that the trade receivable will not be coliectable, the gross carrying
value of the asset is written off against the associated provision.

Impaitmenl provisions for receivables from related parties and ioans to related parties are recognised based on
a forward-looking expected credit loss model. The methodology used to determine the amount of the provision
is based on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial
asset. Forthose where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition of the financial asset,
twelve month expected credit losses along with gross interest income are recognised. For those for which credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit losses along with the gross interest income are
recognised. For those that are determined to be credit impaired, iifetime expected credit losses along with
interest income on a net basis are recognised.

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position. Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost are measured at fair value through prefit and
loss.

Fair value through profit or loss:

All financiat assets not classified as measured at amortised cost are measured at fair value through prefit and
loss. This includes all derivative financial assets. They are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated income statement in the finance income or
expense line. Other than derivative financial instruments which are not designated as hedging instruments, the

Group does not have any assets held for trading nor does it voluntarily classify any financial assets as being at
fair value through profit or loss. :

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are classified according to
the substance of the contractual agreements entered into.

The Group's financial liabilities include lease liability, borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Loan notes are initially recognised at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are subsequentiy recorded at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Treasury shares

Purchases of own shares (treasury shares), including the related costs, are deducted directly from equity in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

frg 200mpany ng aCL0unie 03 Gies ana nzies form part of these inarcia statemers
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Key judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reperted amounts of assets
and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and varicus other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Estimates made by management in the application of adopted IFRS that have a significant effect an the financial
statements with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in the following Notes:

* The valuation of the FedAir CGU, using the discounted cashflow method, resulted in the valuation of the
business at US$5.0m as at 31 December 2022 (2021: USS5.0m). The vaiuation made use of estimates to
determine future toad factors, pricing, revenue, costs and capital expenditure requirements. As at 31
December 2022 management’s assessment showed that there had been no changes to the valuation of
FedAir CGU.

* Impairment of intangible assets (Note 12). Intangible assets comprise of the fastjet and FedAir brands
which were acquired at U552.5m and US50.3m respectively and that had an indefinite useful life. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets’ or cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell. To determine the recoverable amount, management estimates expected future
cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. This assessment resulted in a provision for impairment of these
brandsin 2021 of US51.5m. As at 31 December 2022, management did an assessment of the fastjet brand
and concluded that the factors leading to the impairment loss no longer exist and this resulted in an
impairment toss reversal of Uss1,7m.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Key judgements and estimates (continued)

Judgements made by management in the application of adopted IFRS that have significant effect on the financial
statements. These include:

+ the determination of going concern shown above on page 59.

¢ the determination of the functional currencies of subsidiaries. Management concluded that the functional
currency for fastjet Zimbabwe during 2022 and 2021 was USS. It was noted that the majority of the sales
for fastjet Zimbabwe were denominated and settled in USS, the majority of the cost of sales for fastjet
Zimbabwe are denominated and settled in USS. In addition, the Government of Zimbabwe issued
Statutory Instrument 142 of 2019 Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe {legal Tender) Regulations 2019. This
specifically allowed airlines to receive legal tender in foreign currencies which from above was the United
States Dollars (US$). This judgement impacts the foreign exchange gains/losses within the income
statement and the translation reserve.

= The Group holds less than 50% voting rights in the following companies. The Group consolidates these
subsidiaries even though they hold less than 50% of the voting rights:

- Parrot Aviation {Proprietary) Limited; and
- fastjet Zimbabwe.

Management believes that the consolidation of the above subsidiaries is appropriate as, in the context of
IFRS 10, the parent company has control because they have the ability and opportunity through
shareholder agreements to immediately exercise a call option (at a nominal amount) to change the
majority shareholder. This is always subject to any local shareholding restrictions and requirements for
airline companies that apply from time to time in each respective country. Further, the maintenance of
structurat intertompany balances within these entities avoids the requirement to utilise dividend
mechanisms and as such in substance gives the group 100% exposure to the economic interests of these
entities.

Other factors of contrel include the appointment of the management team, board representation, airline
commercial activities support, operational route network and fleet seiection and ticket distribution
systems, through the fastjet brand licencing agreements with these companies, together with inter-group
loan agreements supporting working capital needs of the operational subsidiary.

Due to the above, management does not recognise any non-controlling interest.

Tha aoonrpan g 2CCoLTUr g DANCIes and nartes fotmooart o mese inarcia stataments
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2. Segmental reporting

The Group’s operations comprises that of airline services. That business operates across a number of different
geographical territories, all within Africa. Accordingly, these geographical territories are the basis for the
Company’s segmental reporting disclosure.

The results of fastjet Limited head office and the Group’s several {dormant) holding companies are disclosed
under the heading ‘Central’. A new business unit, fastjet Central Systems, was implemented in 2019, and has
been disclosed as a segment on its own now. The fastjet Central Systems business unit is responsible for the
management and supply of all reservation and boaking systems, brand coampliance and oversight, and revenue
accounting, for any fastjet branded airline operations, for which it charges a management fee to the supported
airline. The accounting policies of these segments are in line with those set out in Note 1.

Year ended fastjet Centrat federal Eliminate Inter-
31 December 2022 Zimbabwe (Limited) Airlines segment Total
usS$’000 US5'000 Uss o000 UsS$’000 uss’000
External 50,046 - - 14,011 - 64,057
inter-segment - 250 2,816 (3,066) -
Total revenue 50,046 250 16,827 {3,066) 64,057
Other income 161 9,037 1,567 (890) 9,875
EBITDA 3,540 10,525 2,583 (3,232) 13,416
Other finance (expense) [ income {557) (a06) (259) (37) (1,259}
Depreciation / amortisation (124) - (684) (510) (1,318)
Profit / (loss) before tax 2,859 10,119 1,640 (3,779) 10,839
Tax - - (313) 182 (131)
Net profit/ {loss) 2,859 10,119 1,327 {3,597) 10,708

Loss fram discontinued activities net

of tax - - - - (15)
Profit for the year for the Group 2,859 10,119 1,327 (3,597) 10,693
Non-current assets 6,305 6,179 6,055 - 18,539
Tre 22oompany 73 2375040 0G 0.8 20d ~ates o 037 oF hess fingnna. slaisTrenTs
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2. Segmental reporting continued

72

Year ended fastjet Central federal Eliminate
31 December 2021 Zimbabwe (Limited) Airlines  Inter-segment Tatal
USS'000 US$'000 Us$'000 UsS$’000 USS’000
External 22,607 - 5,307 - 27,914
Inter-segment - - 775 {775) -
Total revenue 22,607 - 6,082 {775) 27,914
Other income 83 13,186 719 {154) 13,834
EBITDA (3,192) 9,943 (647} 453 6,557
Other finance income / {expense) {958} (681) {140) 6 (1,773}
Depreciation / amortisation {126} (8,482) {208) 7,972 {844)
(toss) / Prafit before tax (4,276) 780 (995} 8,431 3,340
Tax - - 228 182 410
Net {loss) / profit {4,276) 780 (767} 8,613 4,350
Loss from discentinued activities net of tax - - - - {4,341)
Profit for the year for the Group - - - , 9
Non-current assets 7,620 5,657 4,052 - 17,329

The Board monitors the performance of the business units and the overall Group.

its individual components and therefore these are disclosed above.

The accomparying acccuning solicas ard noles form part of these finardia sialements

It monitors loss after tax and



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

3. Discontinued operations

The loss from discontinued operations net of tax comprise of the foillowing components:

Component Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
US$’000 Uss$’'000

fastjet Africa

- trading loss net of tax (see note 3.1) {15) (425)

fastjet Mozambique

- trading profit / (loss) net of tax (see note 3.1} - 1,027

- Reclassification of foreign exchange translation reserve on

Mozambique and Africa - (4,980}

EBT Trust

- trading loss net of tax (see note 3.1) - 37

Total (15) (4,341)

3.1 Trading (loss) / profit net of tax

As at 31 December 2021, the Board took the decision to close three subsidiaries, fastjet Zambia, fastjet Africa
and fastjet Mozambique. fastjet Zambia, fastjet Africa, fastjet Mozambique no longer form part of the continuing
operations with effect from this date. Consequently, these entities have been disclosed as discontinued
operations with comparative results re-presented. On 6 April 2021 It was decided to wind up the Employees

Benefit Trust. This was also disclosed as a discontinued operation from the Group.

The loss from discontinued activities net of tax in the consolidated income statement for 2022 comprises:

fastjet Africa

uss$’'000
Revenue -
Cost of sales -
Gross profit -
Other income -
Administrative costs 9)
Operating loss 9)
Finance charges (6)
Loss before tax (15)
Taxation -
Loss for the year (15)
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3.1 Trading loss / (profit) net of tax {continued)

The loss from discontinued activities net of tax in the consolidated income statement for 2021 comprises:

fastjet fastjet
fastjet Africa  Mozambique EBT Trust Zambia Jotal
Uss’000 Us$'000 USS'000 UsS$'0c0o USS'000
Revenue - - - - R
Cost of sales 32 - B - 32
Gross profit 32 - - . 3
QOther income 323 1,033 . - 1,356
Administrative costs (720) - 37 - (683}
QOperating (loss} / profit (365) 1,033 N 37 - __705__
Finance charges (60) (6) - - (66)
Loss before tax (425) 1,027 37 - 639
Taxation - - _ - ~
(Loss) / profit for the year (425) 1,027 37 - 639
3.2 The following are the assets and liabilities relating to these operations:
fastjet
fastjet Africa Mozambique Total
Uss'000 Uss'000 Us5’000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 74 74
Total - 74 74
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 1 21 22
The following are the assets and liabilities relating to these operations for 2021:
fastjet fastjet
fastjet Africa Mozambigque Zambia Total
US$’000 Us$’000 US5'000 UsSS$'000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents [ 27 14 a7
Other receivables 49 - - 45
Total 55 27 14 96
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 83 21 21 125

DU anCOMmIarying 8CCoLrthg Cangies and 10tes farm part oF thase rans.a’ sratemanis
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

4. Revenue

Revenue from continuing operations is made up of the following:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Us$’'000 Uss’000

Passenger revenue 55,580 24,283
Charter revenue 6,954 2,545
Anciilary services 1,523 1,086
Total 64,057 27,914

The Group has disaggregated revenue into various categories in the table below, which is intended to enable
users to understand the nature of the revenue by country. These exclude intercompany revenue.

Year ended 31 December 2022 Zimbabwe FedAir Total
Uss$’'000 Us5'000 Uss’000
Passenger revenue 47,778 7,802 ' 55,580
Charter revenue 745 6,209 6,954
Ancillary services 1,523 - 1,523
Total 50,046 14,011 64,057
Year ended 31 December 2021 Zimbabwe FedAir Total
UsSs’000 Uss’000 Uss’000
Passenger revenue 21,111 3,172 24,283
Charter revenue 392 2,153 2,545
Ancillary services 1,104 (18) 1,086
Totat _ 22,607 5,307 27914
Deferred income (forward ticket sales)
Amounts included in Trade and other payables Year ended Year ended
{linked to forward ticket sales) 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Uss$'000 US5'000
Balance - 01 January 1,647 1,663
Amounts released to revenue during the year (1,647) (1,663)
Tickets booked and banked in advance for the following year not
recognised as revenue during the period — included in habilities ! 2,214 1,647
Balance — 31 December 2,214 1,647

! See Note 17
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5. Operating profit

. ) . - . . Year ended Year ended
::::‘r:tmg profit / (loss) is stated after charging the following disclosable 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
' Us$'000 USS$'000
Operating lease costs
. Aircraft from other lessors or operators (short term lease) B,205 1,977
. Other leases 97 -
Right- of- use amortisation {see Note 14)
. Property 633 177
. Equipment 2 5
Fuel 18,589 7,728
Amortisation of other intangible assets (see Note 12) 510 524
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (see Note 13)
. Praperty, plant and equipment 174 98
. Owned aircraft 3,608 3,032
Audit fees paid:
*  Group - (BDO) 209 129
*  Subsidiary companies - (BDQ) 50 135
Net foreign exchange losses 555 1,145
Reversal of impairment loss (see Note 12} {1,172} -

FE ILCOTTDANY I ALIOLNITG pans 23 ard ctes form part of these Ynancial statgments
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6. Cost of sales:
Cost of sal lysis for continui i ise of the followin Vear ended Year ended
mo; nios: estaenz:r:; or continuing operations comprise of the B 31 pecember 2022 31 December 2071
' cost calegories: US$'000 US$'000
Aircraft ieases
- South Africa (FedAir} (non-group) 8,205 1,977
Aircraft depreciation 3,608 3,032
Fuel 18,589 7,728
Crew costs and training
- Flight crew and cabin crew salaries 2,584 1,908
- Other crew costs 123 464
- Training 565 327
Aircraft maintenance and overhaul
- Zimbabwe (Solenta) 3,469 2,175
- Zimbabwe (Other) 1,329 1,351
- South Africa (FedAir) {Solenta) 242 -
- South Africa (FedAir) {Other) 1,299 934
Passenger variable costs 2,985 1,683
Ground handling 2,922 2,055
Airport costs (landing, parking, overfly and navigation) 2,810 1,943
Cost of ancillaries 1,309 492
Withhoiding taxes 123 42
Aircraft insurance 297 252
Flight operations support 328 362
Passenger delay, goodwill and immigraticn fines 175 34
fn-flight retail 26 -
Airport passenger charges 335 311
Other operational costs 93 22
Other 124 113
Total 51,540 27,265
e 3TIoMpat,; ng astsunt NG 03aSies 370 AotEs o 237 3 nase fmant 3 3tataments
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Note 6 {continued)

Administrative costs:

Administrative costs for continuing operations comprise of the Year ended Year ended
following main cost categories: 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
UsS$'000 Us5"000
Employee costs
- salaries and wages 5,128 2,908
- other employee costs 512 202
- sub-contractors and consultants 1,283 2,008
Legal and professional 586 686
IT costs 1,147 629
Office costs 765 581
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 174 a8
Depreciation of right- of- use assets 635 177
Amortisation of intangible assets 510 524
Marketing and advertising costs 405 152
Travel and subsistence 321 166
Other costs - 637
Total 11,466 8,769

7. Other operating income

Other operating income arises mainly from other sources which do not form part of the Group’s passenger
revenue generating activities. Since this is not considered to be part of the main revenue stream, the Group

presents this income separately from revenue.

Other income comprises of the following: Year ended Year ended
11 December 2022 31 December 2021

US5'000 Uss’ooo

RBZ Legacy Loan settlement gain® 8,687 12,439
AAR settlement gain 2 . 643
Advertising and marketing income earned 161 -
Recoveries - 607
Settlement agreement on PHI 350 -
Profit on disposal of assets 576 -
Hangarage 20 48
Parking 1 3
Other 80 94
Total 9,875 13,834

! This is the gain from the settlement of the RBZ Legacy Loan.

Refer to page 9 for further details.

MEACImpaAnyIng I»JCZC,DUI’HJ‘.Q 2607125 AN CES T par ot iress financian statamienis
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8. Employees

The average number of staff {including Directors)
employed by the Group during the year amounted to:

Year ended
31 December 2022

Year ended
31 December 2021

Administration and management 71 48
Cockpit and cabin crew 79 74
Ground and flight operations 53 42
Commercial 17 20
Aircraft maintenance 19 5
Total staff employed (continuing operations) 239 189
Employees analysis by country (continuing operations):
* Zimbabwe 91 87
*  South Africa {(FedAir) 144 98
*  United Kingdom 4 4
Total staff employed 239 189
Year ended Year ended
The aggregate payroll costs {including Directors): 31 December 2022 31 Becember 2021
Us$’000 Uss'00o
Salaries and wages 10,077 7,739
Social security costs 118 79
Pension costs - -
Total 10,195 7,818
Payroll costs for the continuing operations are disclosed in: ‘
Administration costs 6,923 5,119
Cost of sales 3,272 2,699
Total 10,195 7,818
Year ended Year ended
The aggregate remuneration of the Directors in the year was: 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$’000 USS'000
Salaries and wages 384 374
Directors’ fees 96 104
Bonuses 337 25
Professional fees 100 -
917 503

The remuneration of the highest paid Director was USS462k (2021: US5248k). The remuneration of the Directors

are presented on page 39.
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9. Finance income and Finance charges
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Us$ 000 USS’000
Finance income
Interest received on short term deposits 46 26
a6 .26
Finance charges
Interest charges 383 420
Net foreign exchange |osses 555 1,145
Bank charges (includes 2% transfer fees in Zimbabwe) 358 227
Other finance charges 9 8
1,305 1,800
10. Taxation
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
USS$’000 Uss'000
Current tax expenses / {benefit):
Qverseas tax expense 131 -
Deferred tax
Deferred tax - {410}
131 {410)
Disclosed in:
- continuing operations 131 {410)
Tax expense / (benefit) - continuing and discontinued
operations 131 {410)

e accompanying accayrang poacies and notes form part of these finarcial staterents
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Taxation continued

A reconciliation of the tax expense to the reported losses is given below:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Us5’000 USS$'000
Profit from continuing operations before tax 10,839 3,940
Loss from discontinued operations before tax {15) (4,341)
Profit / (loss) before tax 10,824 {401)
Profit / (loss) before tax multiplied by the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2021: 19%) 2,057 (76)
Current year losses for which no deferred tax has been
recognised - 1,969
Current year profits for which no tax has been recognised {550) -
Foreign exchange not allowed 464 202
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 217 753
Non-taxabie income (1,875) (2,364)
Assessed loss from prior year - (726)
Release of fair value adjustment (182) {182)
Prior period deferred tax adjustment o - 14
Total current tax (benefit) 131 {410)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes include specific and general provisions disallowed for tax purposes
until such time as the expenditure is incurred. Examples are fundraising costs and legal costs.

At 31 December 2022 the Group had accumulated tax losses of approximately US$258m {2021: US5259m)
availabie for offset against future taxable trading profits. The ability to utilise these tax losses is uncertain in some
jurisdictions except for FedAir and therefere the Directors consider it inappropriate to recognise this potential
deferred tax asset until such time as the Group begins to generate taxable profits against which the losses will
be utilised.

-,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

11. Profit / (loss) per share

Profit / (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit / {loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders
in the Parent Company (as stated in the income statement} by the weighted average number of shares in issue

during the period.

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the period, adjusted for the share consolidations, was
380,457 {2021: 3,802,393,132). The profit for the purposes of basic earnings per share being the net profit
attributable to the equity holders of the parent was US$10.7m continuing, and US515k loss discontinued

operations (2021: US$4.4m continuing and US54.3m loss discontinued operations).

Year ended
31 December 2022

Number of ordinary shares

Year ended
31 December 2021

3,800,824,884
3,741,245

Issued ordinary shares as at 01 January 3,804,566,129
Warrants exercised in July -
Issue of shares - 29 September 2022 3,871
New share balance before consalidation (3,804,570,000)
Consolidated ordinary shares of £1.00 shares (every 10,000

ordinary shares consolidated into 1} 380,457
Number of shares as at 31 December 380,457

3,804,566,129

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for 2022 is calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Year ended
31 December 2022

Issued ordinary shares as at 01 January 3,804,566,129
Issue of shares — 29 September 2022 976
Weighted average shares after share issue 3,804,567,105
Share consolidation (every 10,000 shares consolidated into 1)
Weighted average number of shares as at 31 December 380,457
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for 2021 is calculated as follows:

Year ended

Woeighted average number of ordinary shares

31 December 2021

Issued ordinary shares as at 01 January
Effect of warrants exercised in July

* 3,800,824,884
1,568,248

Weighted average number of shares as at 31 December

3,802,393,132

The 2.7 T0a0y10g accounting poogws ard notes “or pat o7 nese tnancial statame s
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12. Intangible assets
Computer
Goodwill AOQCs Brands* software Total
UsSs000 Us5'000 us$'000 US$’000 Us$’000
Cost
At 31 December 2020 1,499 7,893 2,797 1,519 13,708
Additions - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 1,499 7,893 2,797 1,519 13,708
Additions . - . - -
At 31 December 2022 1,499 7,893 2,797 1,519 13,708
Less: Amortisation and impairment
At 31 December 2020 1,499 3,961 1,686 1,505 8,651
Amortisation for the year - 491 19 14 524
At 31 December 2021 1,495 4,452 1,705 1,519 9,175
Amortisation for the year 491 19 - 510
Impairment loss reversal’ - - {1,172) - (1,172}
At 31 December 2022 1,499 4,943 552 1,519 8,513
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 - 3,532 1,111 14 5,057
At 31 December 2021 - 3,441 1,092 - 4,533
At 31 December 2022 - 2,950 2,245 - 5,195

‘o

'
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* Indefinite life intangible assets considered significant in comparison to the Group's total carrying amount of
such assets have been aliocated to cash generating units or groups of cash generating units as follows:

Year ended Year ended
Indefinite life Intangible asset 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Us$'000 Uss’000

fastjet Zimbabwe CGU
fastjet Limited brand * 2,500 2,500
Less: cumulative impairment from prior years (1,540) (1,540)
Add: impairment loss reversalf in the current year 1,172 -
2,132 960

FedAir CGU

FedAir brand ? 297 297
Less: cumulative impairment (108) {108)
Less cumulative amortisation (786) (57)
113 132
Total 2,245 1,092

1fastjet Limited brand:

On 31 December 2022, management decided to do a reversal of prior year impairment loss on the fastjet Limited
brand, after an assessment concluded that the factors leading to the impairment loss no longer exist. The
recoverable amount of the fastjet Limited brand has been calculated with reference toits value in use based on
brand licensing fees chargeable to fastjet branded airline operations. The key assumptions of this calculation are
shown below:

Kev Assumptions Year ended Year ended

Y P 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Period in which management forecasts are based 2023-2027 2022-2025
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 0% 2.50%
Discount rate 14.91% 15.00%

The recoverable amount of the Cash Generating Units (“CGUs”) to which this brand asset is allocated have been
measured based en value in use, using a discounted cash flow method. Cash flow projections are based on the
business plan approved by the Board covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the two-year period are
projected to increase in line with the (ong-term growth rate mentioned above. The indefinite life intangible asset
is allocated to the following Cash Generating Units {(“CGU"):

Year ended Year ended

Cash Generating Unit 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Uss$’000 Uss'000

fastjet Zimbabwe 2,132 960
Total N 2,132 960

Trg 9Coorpanying acoouiring conc.es ane noes forr pan of these financial statemerts
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Sensitivity Analysis:
tf the inputs to the valuation model above were 1% higher / lower, while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of the brand would change as reflected below:

1% decrease in the graowth rate (US$ 153,343)
1% increase in the discount rate (US$ 140,761)

? FedAir brand:

As at 31 December 2021, management calculated the recoverable amount of FedAir using a discounted cashflow
method based on FedAir's current shuttle business (being a single CGU).

The key assumptions of this calculation are shown below:

Year ended _ Year ended

Key Assumptions 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Period in which management forecasts are based 2023 - 2027 2022-2026
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 6.50% 2.00%
Discount rate 15.09% 14.80%
Foreign exchange rate ZAR: US$ R17.30:U8$1.00 R15.923:U851.00

The recoverable amount was established to be US$5.0m at 31 December 2022 (2021:US$5.0m).

As at 31 December 2022, management has assessed the recoverable amount of FedAir CGU to be same and no
adjustments were made in the current year.

Sensitivity Analysis:

If the inputs to the vaiuation mode! above were 1% higher / 1% lower or if there was a R1.00 fluctuation in
exchange rate, while all other variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the FedAir business would
change as reflected below based on the discounted cashflow model:

1% decrease in the growth rate (US523,962)
1% increase in the discount rate (Us$22,023)
R1:00 increase in ZAR:USS exchange rate (Us521,260)
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Owned Plant & Fixtures Motor

Aircraft Property Machinery and Equip. Vehicles Total

Uss’000 uss'000 USS 000 Uss$’000 Uss’'000 Uss’000
Cost
At 31 Dec. 2020 15,494 329 304 504 207 16,838
Additions 3,856 53 54 21 61 4,045
Disposals/write off {799) - - - - (799}
foreign currency difference {(393) 4 3 - - (386)
At 31 Dec. 2021 18,158 386 361 525 268 19,698
Additions 4,570 30 39 200 215 5,054
Disposals/write off (2,093) - - - - {2,093)
Foreign currency difference {285) (3) {6) 1 {4) {297)
At 31 Dec. 2022 20,350 413 394 726 473 22,362
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 Dec. 2020 4,887 194 262 322 68 5,733
Charge for the year 3,032 32 10 26 30 3,130
Disposals (584) - - - - (584)
Foreign currency difference (170} 5 - - 1 {164}
At 31 Dec, 2021 7,165 231 . 272 348 99 8,115
Charge for the year 3,608 31 17 90 36 3,782
Write — off 362 - - - - 362
Disposals (770) - - - - (770)
Foreign currency difference {115) (1) 1 - (115)
At 31 Dec. 2022 10,250 261 290 438 135 11,374
Net carrying amount
At 31 Dec. 2020 10,607 135 42 182 139 11,105
At 31 De¢, 2021 10,993 155 89 177 169 11,583
At 31 Dec. 2022 10,100 152 104 288 a4 10,988

Aircraft with a carrying amount of US$1.7m (2021: U5S52.8m) and motor vehicles with a carrying amount of
USS161k [2021: USSnil), serve as security for the instalment liabilities in Note 18.

Aircraft ZS - BBD with a carrying amount of US51.6m, serve as security for the US52.0m loan with Solenta
Aviation Holdings Limited {“SAHL"),

fme aXioroany g acoournng polc-es and noes *orm cart of fMese fnarcial statements
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14. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Nature of leasing activities {in the capacity as lessee)

The Group feases twenty buildings which are in Zimbabwe and South Africa. These are mainly used as offices in
these countries. The leases run for a period of 1.5 years to five years. For the lease of seven properties in
Zimbabwe, the rental is subject to review upan the service of one calendar months’ notice by the lessor. Some
leases in South Africa, the lease payments increase each year by inflation or and in others to be reset periodically
to market rental rates. For some property leases the periodic rent is fixed over the lease term. The Group is
restricted from entering into any sub-lease arrangements without the written consent of the lessor. The Group
leases in equipment with contract terms of three years. The periodic rent for equipment leases is fixed over the
lease term.

The Group leased eight aircraft with contract terms less than twelve months. This was reduced to one aircraft by
the end of the year. These are short term leases, and the Group has taken the short-term exemption included in
IFRS 16 and expensed the costs through the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred. The
‘lease payments are based on a flat monthly amount plus variable lease payments that are linked to the future
performance of use of an underlying asset in the form of flight hours and these variabie payments are recegnised
when the performance or use occurs. The amount relating to aircraft leases that was expensed in the current
year is US$8.0m (2021:US$2.0m). Some of these leases are cancellable with short notice of thirty days and no
penalty and some with a notice of forty-eight hours with also no penalty.

Some leases contain extension options exercisable by the Group up tc one year before the end of the non-
canceliable contract period. Where practicable, the Group seeks to include extension options in new leases to
provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
lessors, The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a
significant event or significant changes in circumstances within its control.

The foliowing are the Right- of- use assets of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and the corresponding lease
liabilities:

Right-of-use assets

Property Equipment Total

us$’000 uss$’000 UsS$’000
As at 1 January 2020 432 6 438
Additions 757 - 757
Amortisation (177) {5) (182)
Effect of modification to lease terms 218 - 218
Foreign exchange movements (17) (1) {18}
As at 31 December 2021 1,213 - 1,213
Additions 1,894 16 1,910
Amortisation {633) (2) (635)
Effect of modification to lease terms 91 - 91
Foreign exchange movements {223) - (223)
As at 31 December 2022 2,342 14 2,356

'
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Lease liabilities
Property Equipment Total
o US$’000 USss5°000 US$000
As at 1 January 2020 519 9 528
Additions 757 757
Interest expense 68 - 68
Lease payments {175) (8) (183)
Effect of modification to lease terms 169 - 169
Foreign exchange movements (20) (1) (21)
As at 31 December 2021 1,318 - 1,318
Additions 1,895 16 1,911
Interest expense 122 1 123
Lease payments (689} (2) (691)
Effect of modification to lease terms 91 . 91
Foreign exchange movements (261) - (261)
As at 31 December 2022 2,476 15 2,491
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
At 31 December 2022 Between 3 and Between 1 Between 2
Up to 3 menths 12 manths and 2year and5years Over5 Years
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 USS$’000 Us$’000
Lease liahilities 269 813 855 554
At 31 December 2021 Between 3 and Between 1 Between—i
Up to 3 months 12 months  and 2years and Syears Over 5Years
Uss’'000 uss'000 LS$’'000 Uss’000 USS’000
Lease liabilities 54 164 235 865

The aotemparyng accoLnting posnies ana “Ctes form part 37 thase finarcial staiemens
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15. Trade and other receivables

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$°000 Us$’000
Trade and other receivables due within one year:

Trade receivables {net of provision for loss allowance) 7,676 3,551
Other receivables 6,305 1,516
Aircraft deposit - Textron - new C208B EX 2,093 -
Engine refurbishment deposit - Roils Royce 1,260 -
Fuel deposit - Puma 612 112
Rental deposit — Dawn Properties fastjet Zimbabwe 387 -
Pool access deposit — Solenta Aviation (Proprietary) Limited 200 -
Maintenance deposit - Solenta Aviation (Proprietary) Limited 133 -
Fan wheel deposit - Solenta Aviation {Proprietary) Limited 105 -
Security deposit - FJIA ERJ 145 101 -
Maintenance deposit - Solenta C208B rotabie baseline 45 -
Other deposits 378 104
RBZ auction receivable 208 227
Other receivables 83 350
BBD engine deposit - ACIA - 525
C- check and landing gears deposit -fastjet Zimbabwe - 198

Total financial assets other than cash and cash equivalents
classified as amortised cost 13,981 5,067
VAT and tax 2,071 1,878
Prepayments 357 669
Total 2,428 2,547
Total 16,409 7,614

The Group applies a simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using the lifetime expected credit
loss provision method.

To measure expected credit losses on a collective basis, trade receivables are grouped based on similar credit
risk and aging. Trade receivables relate primarily to travel agencies who have collected funds for the group — for
the 2022 year these are all considered to have a similar credit risk and aging and have been included in one
category.

The expected loss rates are based on the Group’s historical credit losses experienced over the three-year period
prigr to the period end, The historical loss rates are then adjusted for current and forward-looking information
on macrceccnomic factors affecting the Group’s customers. The Group has identified the gross domestic product
{GDP}, unemployment rate and inflaticn rate as the key macroeconomic factors in the countries where the Group
operates.

Credit risk for receivables has not increased significantly since their initial recognition.

Trg ancormpanying aCcoUTIrg Cories and ~oes form nar of rress fran gl steterens
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Trade and other receivables {continued)

The lifetime expected loss provision for trade receivables and contract assets is as follows:

As at 31 December 2022 Current
US$’'000
Expected loss rate — category 1 1%
Gross carrying amount 7,676
Loss provision 76
Expected loss rate — category 2 100%
Gross carrying amount -
Loss provision -
As at 31 December 2021
Expected loss rate — category 1 1%
Gross carrying amount 3,551
Loss provision 36
Expected loss rate — category 2 100%
Gross carrying amount -
Loss provision -
Movements in the impairment allowance for trade receivables are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Us$°000 Uss'000

Opening provision for impairment of trade receivables -
Increase during the year -
Decrease during the year -

At 31 December ~ -
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16. Cash and cash equivalents

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

o USsS$’000 Uss’000

Petty cash 31 52

Bank balances 7,791 4,354
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated

balance sheet 7,822 4,406
‘Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of

cash flows* . 7,822 4,406

* As at 31 December 2022, US$485k {2021: US$581k) of cash and cash equivalents of fastjet Zimbabwe was cash
restricted for use mainly within the country.

17. Trade and other payables

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

UsSs$’000 Uss'000
Trade payables 5,889 4,724
Deferred income (forward ticket sales) 2,214 1,647
Accruals * 1,069 760
Other payables 543 286
Cther taxation and social security 42 10
VAT & tax - -
9,757 7,427

* The accruals include USS$nil {2021:US5234k) for fastjet Limited settiement agreements as group guarantor
related to the disposal of the Tanzanian CGU.
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18. Loans and other borrowings

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
uSs’000 UssS'000

Non-current
Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited loan * 2,000 2,000
Instalment sale liabiiities * 116 429
COVID-19 related loan? 320 554
Total 2,436 2,983

Current

Instalment sale liabilities * 262 774
Loan from SSCG * - 502
COVID-19 related loan? 202 149
Total - 464 1,425

1SS denominated — fastjet Limited
2 South African Rands (ZAR) denominated — FedAir CGU

Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited loan

The salient terms of the Facility are as follows:

= The required security for the loan comprises security over certain key material assets of the fastjet Group
including the fastjet brand and trademarks, the majority interest in the shares held by the Group in fastjet
Zimbabwe Limited, the shares acquired by the Group in FedAir, and a mortgage over one aircraft, ZS — BBD;

* The security includes an SAHL right to nominate directors to the Boards of FedAir and fastjet Zimbabwe
Limited together with an additional director to the Board of fastjet Limited {such nominated individuals in

each case to constitute a minority of directors of the respective boards of the companies);

* The Facility agreement includes standard representations, warranties and events of default, including
restrictions on future borrowing and security (subject to exceptions);

* The applicable interest rate is fixed 6% per annum;
*  Repayment after 48 months provided that there has been six months of trading profitability;

* The lender can allow repayment after 36 months, provided that the six months profitability condition has
been met;

*  Addition of fastjet Africa {excluding fastjet Mozambigue Limitada) as additionat security for the remaining
term; and

* 0On 25 May 2022, SAHL agreed to extend the repayment of the US$2.0m loan to 29 November 2024.
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Loans and other borrowings continued

On 18 May 2020, an additional amount of US$600k was drawn down under a new loan extension and the current
balance outstanding is now US$2.6m. The terms of the additional US$600k ioan drawn are:

* The applicable interest rate is 10% per annum;

*  The initial lean term was six months from date of draw down, and can be extended twice further for two
additional six-month terms; on each extension, a 1% roliover fee is payable in cash; and

*  The maximum loan term of the additional USS600k is 18 months, with final repayment to occur no later than
19 November 2021.This was repaid by November 2021,

Instalment sale liabilities

Liabilities under instalment sale agreements are South African Rand denominated loans held with Standard Bank
of South Africa Limited. The loans arose following the purchase by FedAir of four of their cperational aircraft.
Two of those aircraft were disposed in 2022. Those are currently reflected under owned aircraft and two vehicles
included under motor vehicles in (see Note 13}. The loans bear interest at South African prime (currently 7.00%)
minus 1%. Final instaiments on the aircraft were due in june 2023 and final instalments on the motor vehicles
are due in between 01 December 2026 and 01 November 2027.

As at 31 December 2022, the instalment saie liabilities are secured by the two owned aircraft with a book value
in FedAir of USS51.7m (2021: U552 .8m) and motor vehicles with a book value in FedAir of US$161k {2021:
USS51k).

FedAir overdraft and COVID-19 Loan

On 10 August 2020, FedAir received a R12,639,647 (approximately US$760,000) COVID-19 Emergency Term
Loan facility from Standard Bank of South Africa Limited and the loan agreements have been agreed and
implemented. The |ean is over a period of 66 months and bears variable interest at the prime interest rate
which is currently at 11.5% per year. The loan was granted on an unsecured basis.

The loan can only be used to finance specified operational expenses in the amounts set out below:

*  salaries and wages to employees: gross payroll i.e. cost to company, including income tax remittances,
pension, medical aid but specifically excluding payment in relation to retrenchments - for an aggregate
amount of R4.0m (USS274k);

* salaries and wages to directors, trustees, members and other like officers {but specifically excluding
payments in relation to retrenchments, loan repayments, profit, shareholder or member distributions,
director members’, trustees’ and/or management fees and/or royalty payments to directors, members,
trustees and/or shareholders - for an aggregate amount of R857k [US557k);

= payment of rentals (immovable properties) and lease payments (in relation to machinery and
equipment directly used in the production of goods and services in the business) - for an aggregate
amount of R1,3m (US$89k);

« supplier payments of direct and indirect costs and expenses associated with the domestic and/or foreign
supply of goods, materials and services to the Borrower, including (without limitation), the costs and
expenses of importing and exporting goods and materials, including all logistics and custom service
providers relating thereto - for an aggregate amount of R3.0m (US5205k);

*  utility payments: electricity, water and gas - for an aggregate amount of R154k (US511k); and

* other operating expenses in an aggregate amount of R3,2m {US$219k).
FedAir has complied with the above conditions to date.
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Loans and other borrowings continued

Loan from S5CG

Original transaction

In July 2018, fastjet Limited borrowed US52.0m from S5CG for general working capital purposes across the Group
on an interest-bearing loan at 6% fixed per annum, for an initial period of six months with several amendments
extending it up to 31 August 2022. The futl amount outstanding was fully settled in June 2022.

19. Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method.

The movement on the deferred tax account is as shown below:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Us$'000 Uss’000
At 1 January {1,566) {2,014)
Recognised in profit and loss - 410
Effects of movements in exchange rate 10 38
At 31 December (1,556) {1,566)
Deferred tax liability is attributable to the following items
Aircraft, plant and equipment (823) {1,099}
AQC (825) (963)
Allowance for future expenditure (154) (112)
Lease liabilities 655 305
Prepaid expenses (33) (138)
Brand (32) (37)
Assessed loss - 631
Income received in advance 233 152
Right-of-use-asset (619) (285}
Leave pay provision 34 23
Provision for bonuses 38 -
Effect of change in tax rate 14 -
Adjustment for prior years (15) -
Effects of movement in exchange rate (29) (43)
{1,556) {1,566)

In 2022, a deferred tax asset has not been recognised for unused tax losses for all the companies in the Group.
This is because it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Group companies
can use the benefits thereon.In 2021, a deferred tax asset of USS631k relating to FedAir assessed losses was
recognised.
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20. Share capital and Share premium

Number of Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary deferred Number of Share Share Shara
shares shares shares* deferred shares* capital capital premium
£1.00 each £0.0001 each  £0.01 each £0.09 each
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 GBP’000 Us$°000 uss$’000
At 1 lanuary 2021 - 3,800,825 9,313 1,035,890 131,331 192,077 215,050
Shares issued - 3,741 - - - 53 1,588
At 31 December
2021 o - 3,804,566 9,313 1,035,890 131,331 192,130 216,638
Shares issued - 4 - - - - -
Consolidation 380,457 (3,804,570) - - - - -
At 31 December
2022 380,457 - 9,313 1,035,890 131,331 192,130 216,638

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

* Deferred shares - On 8 August 2016, the Company’s existing ordinary shares of £1.00 each were consolidated
into new ordinary shares on the basis of one new ordinary share of 1 penny each and 11 deferred shares of 9
pence each for every existing ordinary share of £1.00 each.

The deferred shares have no rights attached.

2022:

On 29 September 2022 the existing 3,804,570,000 shares of £0.01 each were consolidated into 380,457 shares
of £1.00 each. To effect the Share Consolidation, the Company issued 3,871 additional Ordinary Shares prior to
the consolidation record date so that the aggregate nominal value of the ordinary share capital of the Company

is exactly divisible by 10,000. Following the Additional Share Issuance, the Company had 3,804,570,000

Ordinary Shares in issue.

These were consolidated into new ordinary shares of £1 each on the basis of 1 (one} consolidated share for every
10,000 ordinary shares in issue. After the consolidation, the shares in issue became 380,457,

2021:

On 31 july 2021, 3,741,245 warrants were exercised at the price of £0.315 per share.
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Reconciliation of outstanding share warrants

The number and weighted average prices of warrants are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
warrants average ‘warrants average
exercise exercise
price price
Qutstanding at beginning of the year - - 30,314,716 £0.315
Granted - - - -
Exercised - - {3,741,245) -
Lapsed - - (26,573,471} -
Outstanding at end of the year - - B - £0.315

Included in the analysis above are warrants that have been issued to WH Ireland Limited, Liberum Capital Limited
and Sanlam Securities UK Limited as part consideration of their fees in respect of the share placings.

On 31 July 2021 3,741,245 were exercised and the remaining 26,573,471 lapsed.

21. Subsidiaries

The Company holds ordinary shares in the following subsidiary companies. All subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements.

Active Companies Voting rights held

Name Country of incorporation  Activity : 2022 2021
fastjet Zimbabwe Limited Zimbabwe Airline Services 49.00% 49.00%
Parrot Aviation Proprietary Limited South Africa Helding Company 25.00% 25.00%
federal Airlines Proprietary Limited South Africa Airline Services 25.00% 25.00%

Discontinued Operations Voting rights held

Name Country of Incorporation  Activity 2022 2021
Airline Management

fastjet Africa (Pty) Limited South Africa Services 100% 100.00%

fastjet Mozambique Limitada Mozambique Airline Services 100% 99.25%

fastjet Zambia Limited Zambia Airfine Services - 45.50%

The registered office of all companies incorporated in the UK is the 6 Floor, 60 Gracechurch Street, tondon
EC3V CHR,

The registered office of fastjet Africa {Proprietary) Limited is Key West Centre, 43 Van Buuren Road, Bedfordview,
Gauteng, South Africa.

The registered office of fastjet Mozambique Limitada is No 165, Jose Sidumo Road, Beirro Central, Urban District
1, Maputo, Mozambique.

The registered office for Parrot Aviation {(Proprietary} Limited is Key West Centre, 43 Van Buurern Road,
Bedfordview, Gauteng, South Africa.

TNE ACCOMpatying 3ciouning poicies and rotes form part of irese hinancial staterrents



Fast el Liated and s aos : g7

Arnga’ [egert and

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

21. Subsidiaries {continued)

The registered office for federal Airlines {Proprietary) Limited is Hangar 14, Bonaero Park, Johannesburg, South
Africa.

All subsidiaries of the Group are shown above.
fastjet Zimbabwe Limited, fastjet Zambia Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2015 the share capital in fastjet Zimbabwe Limited and fastjet Zambia
Limited were reprganised to enable shares to be issued to holding companies incorporated in the respective
countries which in turn are owned by individuals who are naticnals in those countries. The shares, which were
issued, brought the national ownership by virtue of the individual shareholdings to greater than 50% ownership
in each country.

fastjet Zimbabwe Limited and fastjet Zambia Limited (remains dormant) are consolidated as subsidiaries in these
financial statements. Refer to the key judgements and estimates note on page 69 for further detail regarding this
consolidation.

Parrot Aviation (Proprietary) Limited

In the 2017 financial year, fastjet Limited acquired a 25% equity interest in Parrot Aviation. The remaining 75%
equity was acquired by the fastjet Group Chairman, Rashid Wally and transferred to Wally Technologies &
Associates in 2021.

Parrot Aviation is consolidated as a subsidiary in these financial statements. Although the Group holds only 25%
shareholding and voting rights in the entity, it controls the management, cperations and distributions through
contractual agreements as well as its board representation. Consequently, there is no adjustment for non-
controlting interests.
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22. Shares based payments

Employee Share Options

The Company has issued various options and warrants. Share options have been issued to Directors and
employees as part of their remuneration and incentive packages.

The terms and conditions related to the grants of the share options are as follows; ali options are to be settled

by physical delivery of shares.

Number of
Grant date of Options options Contractual life
granted to Directors granted* Vesting Conditions of options*

Cn 13 June 2012

Cptions granted to Directors
and employees on 1 April
2015

Options granted to Directors
on 15 August 2016

2,834,204

1,922,607

Caompleting reverse take over

Approval of proposed funding announced
by the Company on 1 April 2015 by the
Company in a general meeting by 20 April
2015.

None

13.06.12 to 13.06.22

01.04.15 t0 01.04.25

15.08.16 to 15.08.26

In accordance with IFRS 2 "Share based payments” share options granted or re-priced during the period have
been measured at fair value. The fair value of the options granted has been estimated at the date of grant using

the Black-5choles option pricing model.

*The number of options and vesting conditions has been adjusted following the share consolidation on 21 April

2015.
Date of grant

13 June 2012 1 April 2015 15 August 2016
Share price £3.05 £1.025 £0.2545
Exercise price £5.00 £1.025 £0.315
Expected volatility 50% 77.27% 110.73%
Expected life 2.5 years 3 years 5 years
Expected dividends 0 0 9
Risk-free interest rate 2% . 0.65% 0.17%
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Reconciliation of outstanding share options

The number and weighted average prices of options are as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options exercise price options exercise price
Qutstanding at beginning of the year 4,759,811 £1.15 4,755,811 £1.15
Granted - - - -
Exercised - - - -
Lapsed - - - -
Outstanding at end of the year 4,759,811 £1.15 4,759,811 £1.15

Options and average prices have been adjusted following the share consolidation on 21 April 2015,

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2022 have an exercise price in the range of £0.315 to £44.78
(2020: £0.315 to £44.78) and a weighted average contractual life of 7.7 years (2020: 7.7 years).

Expense recognised in the profit or loss Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Uss$’000 uss’oco

Total expense recognised for equity-settled share-based payments - -

19
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23. Financial instruments

The Group’s principat financial instrurnents comprise of equity shares, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings.
The purpose of these instruments is to finance the Group's operations. The Group has other financial assets and
liabilities that arise directly from its operations, such as trade and other receivables and payables.

The Group does not presently enter into derivative transactions such as forward foreign currency contracts.

Carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities, together with their carrying value at each reporting date are as
follows:

Financial assets

at fair value
At 31 December 2022 through profit and Amortised Amortised cost Carrying Fair
loss cost financial liabilities Other* value value
L Uss'000 Us5$'000 USS'000  USS'000 USS'000  USS’000
Trade and other receivables - 13,981 - 2,428 16,409 16,409
Cash and cash equivalents - 7,822 - - 7,822 7,822
Trade and other payables . . {7,501) {2,256) (9,757} {9,757)
Loans and borrowings _ - {2,900) - {2,900} (2,900)
Lease liabilities . - {2,491) - (2,491} (2,491)

Financial assets

at fair value
At 31 December 2021 through profit and Amortised Amaortised cost Carrying Fair
loss cost  financiat liabilities Other* value value
LIS$’000 Uss'0c0 USS'000  USS'000  USS'000 USS'000
Trade and other receivables - 5,067 - 2,547 7,614 7,614
Cash and cash equivalents - 4,406 - - 4,406 4,406
Trade and other payables ~ B (5,770) (1,657) (7,427) {7,427)
Loans and borrowings B - {4,408) - {4,408) {4,408)
Lease liabilities B - (1,318) - {1,318) {1,318)

* Amounts included in the "other” column are not "financial instruments" but are included to facilitate
reconciliation of the carrying value of financial instruments with the statement of financial position.

ne 2ICampar.ng acccuring ochoes ang notes foom par: of thase hnancai statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financial instruments (continued)
Currency Risk

The Group operates in several African currencies and so is exposed to exchange rate risk. There is a degree of
natural hedging in that the operating subsidiaries generate revenues and costs in the same currencies; however,
exchange variances do occur when the local entities are translated to the functional Group currency upon
consclidation. Further exchange exposure arises from the Group's financing (in particular share issues) being
largely denominated in Sterling.

Details of the Group’s exposure to currency risk are detailed below. The financial assets and Habilities by currency
{converted into US dollars) are as follows:

Monetary Monetary
At 31 December 2022 assets liabilities
Uss$’000 uss’000
UsS Dollars 18,403 6,012
South Africa Rand 1,951 6,257
ZWL (Zimbabwe local §) 1,416 2,230
Malawian Kwacha 375
Sterling 100 5
Botswana Pula 35 -
Mozambican Metical 9 -
Euro 4 10
22,293 14,514
Monetary Monetary
At 31 December 2021 assets iiabilities
USS$’000 UsSs'000
Sterting 1,308 -
Us Dollars 5,987 5,197
South Africa Rand 1,566 4,505
Euro 13 -
ZWL (Zimbabwe locat §) 579 1,644
9,453 11,346

No formal policies have been put in place in order te hedge the Group’s activities from exposure to currency risk,
butitis the Group’s policy to ensure that individual Group entities enter into local transactions in their functional
currency wherever possible. The Group considers this minimises a lot of foreign exchange exposure. The Group
and the Company’s cash balances are maintained in a number of currencies, somewhat matched to the expected
currency of outflows and this further reduces exposure to exchange risk. The biggest currency risk is in the
Zimbabwean market in that it is challenging to extract funds from local sales to pay for offshore payables.

Management regularly monitors the currency profile of the Group’s cash balances and obtains informal advice
to ensure that the cash balances are held in currencies minimising the impact on the results and position of the
Group from foreign exchange movements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financial instruments (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

A 10% percent weakening of the following currencies against the USS at 31 December 2022 would have increased
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This calculation assumes that the change
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to risk exposures existing at that date.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular other exchange rates and interest rates, remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 31 December 2021.

10% increase in currency 10% decrease in currency

Impact on profit before tax Impact on profit before tax
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
UsS$'000 Uss’o00 Us5’000 uss’ooe
Sterling 11 145 (11) (145)
South African Rand {478} (186) 478 186
Eurc (1) 1 1 {1)
Zimbabwean dollars (90) (19} 90 19
Mozambican metical 1 - (1) -
Mailawian Kwacha a2 - {42) -

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from Group’s management of working capital and the finance charges and principal

repayments on its debt instruments. It is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s and company’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group and company manage
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Based on current projections the Group will not need a capital raise to continue operating in it's current form.

Tre II0MBaryIng account ng pohcas ana notes 1orr pact of trese hrarcia. siaterents
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financial instruments continued

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments and
including the effects of netting agreements:

3 months 5 years
Carrying  Contractual Upto3 and 12 1to2 2t05 and
At 31 December 2022 amount cash flows  months months years years over
US$’000 US$'000  USS'000 US$'000  US$'000 us$'000 Uss’000
Trade payables 5,889 5,889 - 5,889 - - -
Other payables and accruals* 1,612 1,612 - 1,612 - - -
Loans with SAHL 2,000 2,000 - - 2,000 -
Instalment sale liabilities 378 427 130 154 36 107 -
Lease liabilities 2,491 2,943 304 8638 804 967 -
COVID-19 related loan 522 614 48 145 194 227 -
Total 12,892 13,485 482 8,668 3,034 1,301 -
The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2021:
3 months 5 years
Carrying Contractual Upto 3 and 12 lto2 2to5 and
At 31 December 2021 amount cash flows months months years years aver
US$’000 UsSs$’000  USS'000 US$’000  US$’000 Uss’000 Us$000
Trade payables 4,724 4,724 - 4,724 - -
Other payables and accruals* 1,046 1,046 - 1,046 - -
Loans with SAHL 2,000 2,000 - - 2,000 -
Instalment sale liabilities 1,203 1,277 135 695 419 24 -
Lease liabilities 1,318 1,688 76 244 314 1,054 -
Loan from 5SCG 502 502 - 502 - - -
COVID-19 related loan 703 976 16 145 193 622 -
Total 11,496 12,213 231 7,356 926 3,700 -
* Excludes deferred income and taxes
TUE IILITRAT, T T @0 LT T ooases 870 notes toom ortt of Thess g Lig sreasents
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financial instruments continued

Credit risk
Cash and cash equivalents

The Group credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents. The Group held cash and cash equivalents of
USS7.8m as at 31 December 2022 (2020: USS4.4m). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and
financial institution counterparties, which have the ratings shown below:

Year ended 31 December 2022 Year ended 31 December 2021

Cash at Bank

Cash at Bank

Rating USS’000 Rating USS 000
Barclays UK At 6,150 A 2,812
Standard Bank of South Africa AA+ 1,016 B 746
Ecobank Zimbabwe AA- 7 BBR 463
NMB Bank Zimbabwe BBB- 49 BB 35
CBZ Zimbabwe AA- 434 A B8
Stanbic Bank Zimbabwe BB- 129 AA- 230
CABS A+ k]
NBS BBB- 2
Steward Bank BB+ 1
Bank balance as per Note 16 7,791 4,354

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured en a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk
based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

Refer to further disclosure in Note 15 Trade and other receivables.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s credit risk for trade and other receivables is limited because it is not exposed to a high level of trade
or other receivables, in large part because customers typically pay for flights prior to departure.

Interest rate risk

The Group interest rate risk arises from instalment sale liabilities and COVID - 19 loan. The instalment sale
liabilities are issued at prime hank interest rate plus one percent. The COVID — 19 loan is at variable interest
which is at prime rate which is currently at 11.5%. Borrowings at variable interest rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk is managed through determining the right balance of fixed and
variable debt within the finance structure where necessary.

The interest profile of financial liabilities was as follows:

Loans and borrowings Totai

At31D ber 2022
ecembershes US$000 US$'000
Fixed interest (SAHL) 2,000 2,000
Variable interest 900 900
Total 2,900 2,900

The §UCC TDany g Actountng pa-cies and notes form parr o7 imese financa. siatements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financial instruments continued

Loans and borrowings Total

At 31D
ecember 2021 US$’000 US$’000
Fixed interest (SAHL & SSCG) 2,502 2,502
Variable interest 1,906 1,906
Total 4,408 4,408

Had there been a fifty basis points increase or decrease in the interest rates, the impact on the income statement
and the shareholders’ equity will be insignificant.

Capital management risk

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings, cash and cash equivalents
and equity.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Board’s policy for the Group and company is to maintain a strong capitai base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future developments of the business.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

* to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

* to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk.

The Group sets the level of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets.

The Group monitors capital based on the net debt to capital ratio. Net debt is calculated as total debt (as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.

The debt-to-adjusted-capital ratios were as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

UsS$'000 US$'000

Loans and borrowings 2,900 4,408
Lease liabilities 2,491 1,318
Less: cash and cash equivalents (7,822} {4,402}
Net debt / (cash) (2,431) 1,324
Total equity 26,118 14,647
Debt to capital ratio {9%) 9%

T1E 203070ANYING 300U TG O CIES 3ne toies farrt n37 ¢ mass firacoar stateTen's
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financial instruments {continued)
The decrease in the net debt to capital ratio during 2022 resulted primarily from the increase in totat equity as

at 31 December 2022. The total equity increased as a resuft of the profits that were made in the current year.
The decrease in the ratio was due to the settlement of debts.

24. Reconciliation of liahilities arising from financing activities in the cash flow

Instalment
sale SAHL S$SCG COVID-
liabilities loan Loan 19 loan Total

US$’000  USS’000 USS'000 USS'000 Us$°000

At1lanuary 2022 1,203 2,000 502 703 4,308
Loan obtained 157 - - - 157
Repayment of borrowings as per cash flow statement {965) - (502) {145) (1,612)
Payment of interest (54) (123) (9) (49) (235}
Other non-cash changes:
Interest charges accrued 54 123 9 49 235
Foreign exchange variances (17) - - (36) (53)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 78 2,000 - 522 2,900
Instalment
sale SSCG CovID-19
liabilities SAHL loan Lean loan Total
USS' 000 Uss'000 USS'000 USS'000 UsSs’000

At 1 January 2020 1,416 2,600 795 882 5,693
Loan obtained - - - - -
Repayment of borrowings as per cash fiow

statement {126) (600} {250} {106) {1,082}
Payment of interest (80) (157) (86} {54) {377)
Other non-cash changes:

Interest charges accrued 80 157 43 54 334
Foreign exchange variances (87) - - {73) {160}
Balance as at 31 December 2021 1,203 2,000 502 703 4,408

Tra 332075330 C8 ACCoL NNy nelLes at comes for car of trese fnanciar siatemarts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

25. Related Parties

Solenta:

As at 31 December 2022, Solenta Aviation Hoidings Limited (“SAHL”} was a 67% (2021: 67%) sharehoider in fastjet
Limited and provided aircraft leasing and related services to the Group.

The amounts included in the Balance Sheet for these items are as follows:

SAHL Year ended Year ended
group 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
entity USS’000 Uss’'000
Non-current liabilities
Long term loan SAHL 2,000 2,000
Current liabilities
Trade payables
* Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited SAHL 10 10
* Solenta Aviation (Proprietary) Limited PTY 473 715
* ACIA Aero Leasing Limited ACIA 12 331
* Solenta Investment Holdings SIH 1 -
(Proprietary) Limited
Current assets
Trade receivables
* Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited SAHL 264 4
Deposit
* Solenta Aviation (Proprietary) Limited PTY 483 393
= ACIA Aero Leasing Limited ACIA - 525

fastjet Limited entered into a brand license agreement with Solenta Aviation Mozambique Limitada (“SAM”) to
allow SAM to operate on its AQC the fastjet brand. There have been no transactions during the year with SAM
with regard to this agreement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Related Parties {continued)

104

The amounts included in the Income Statement in relation to transactions with the SAHL group of companies

during the year were as follows:

SAHL Year ended Year ended

group entity 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Uss$’000 uss’000

Crew, Maintenance, Insurance services PTY - 2,175
Aircraft maintenance reserves PTY 3,469 -
Aircraft Base Maintenance PTY 1,071 1,236
Crew re-currency training and/or type ratings PTY 293 148
FedAir — Maintenance services PTY 207 4
FedAir - Other costs PTY - 43
FedAir — crew costs PTY 3 -
FedAir — other income SAHL 13 -
Purchase of aircraft ACIA - 2,040
Operating Costs - landing, parking, navigation, fuel PTY 5 78
Aircraft maintenance reserves ACIA - 23
Sale of aircraft parts PTY - (50)
Charter revenue PTY - i (270)
5,061 B 5,427

Interest charges - SAHL loan 123 158
Interest charges - ACIA 6 45

Directors:

Directors are considered related parties. There are no other transactions with Directors apart from the Directors’

emoluments disclosed in Note 8 and share options granted to Directors disclosed in Note 22.

Additionally, Mark Hurst, the fastjet Groug Chief Executive Officer with effect frorm 1 October 2019, continues to
serve as the Group Chief Executive Officer and a Director of ACIA Aero Capital Limited and certain of its

subsidiaries.

Transactions with subsidiaries:

Transactions with Group companies have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed separately

under related parties above. See Note 21 for the list of subsidiaries.

Wally Technologies and Associates

Wally Technologies and Associates which owns 75% of Parrot Aviation, provides consultation services to FedAir.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, U55114k {2021:USSnil} was paid to Wally Technologies in relation to
these services. As at 31 December 2022, USS42k {2021:USSnil) was included in accruals.

Tra J0ICMpanying 2350001 g oo 28 and notes ‘urm part of these fingroar staterrants
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

26. Post balance sheet events

Loan from Satfin limited (“SATF”)

On 14 April 2023, fastjet Limited took a short-term loan from SATF with a value of US$6.0m to bridge the short-
term funding gap for the purchase of the six (6] Cessna Grand Caravan EX. The loan has been fully repaid on 04
August 2024. The following were the terms of the loan:

* The Loan was repayable in full by the 15th of August 2023;

*  The loan was renewable subject to mutual agreement and updated terms and conditions;

* Araising fee for the Loan facility of US5172k was paid by fastjet Limited before 30 June 2023;

* The loan bears interest at a rate of 6% (six percent) per annum compounded monthly in arrears and
calculated over a 360-day year basis; and

* Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited (“SAHL"} acted as guarantor on the loan facility.

Delivery of six {6) Cessna Grand Caravan EX

The six (6) Cessna Grand Caravan EX purchased from Textron in 2022 were delivered in June and July 2023
respectively. The total consideration paid amounted to US517.5m. An amount of USS$5.7m was settled by the
group’s own funds and the balance of US$12m was settled from a facility from Investec. The facility was disbursed
in two tranches of USS6m each on 26 June and 27 July respectively. The facility is denominated in ZAR for a
seven-year term and bears interest at monthly JIBAR + 3.3%.

Acquisition of a Mauritian SPV

The Company has acquired a Mauritian SPV and renamed it Rempart Aviation Limited (formerly Acia Aero Atlas
Limited) for a consideration of USS 1,000 from Acia. Rempart Aviation Limited has subsequently entered a Letter
of Intent with United Airlines Limited to acquire three Embraer (3) 145 XR for a consideration of US58.4m. The
Company intends to raise convertible loan notes issued ta major shareholders for a value of US$10m which will
be used to acquire the 3 Embraer 145 XR mentioned earlier with the balance used for heavy maintenance of the
aircraft. Prior to the loan notes being raised a bridging loan facility has been entered into with Satfin Limited
{“SATF”) for US$2.5m bearing 12% interest which will be used as a deposit for those aireraft. The US52.5m will
be refunded once the convertible loan notes are issued around September or October 2023.

Pearl Yield South Africa

A new company Pearl Yield South Africa has been incorporated with fastjet Limited holding 50% shares. The
Company operates a sales office at ORT International Airport in Johannesburg as from April 2023 on behalf of
fastjet Zimbabwe.

Federal Air Proprietary Limited

Parrot Aviation (Pty) Limited acquired 100% of Federal Air {Pty) Limited from Solenta Investment Holdings {Pty)
Limited.

fastjet Zimbabwe Limited — South Africa Branch

fastjet Zimbabwe Limited opened a branch in South Africa
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Parent company balance sheet

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Note Uss’'000 Uss'000
Assets
investments 4 8,746 -
Intangible assets 5 2,132 960
Intercompany loan receivable 6 2,505 5,000
13,383 5,960
Current assets
Cash and cash equivaients 6,150 2,812
Tracde and other receivables 7 24 48
6,174 2,860
Total assets 19,557 8,820
Equity
Share capital 5 192,130 192,130
Share premium account ] 216,638 216,638
Equity reserve 12,502 12,502
Retained earnings (404,701) (415,606)
Total equity 16,569 5,664
Non-current liahilities
Loans and borrowings 10 2,000 2,000
Current jiabilities
Trade and other payables 8 988 654
Loans and borrowings 10 - 502
Intercompany loans payable - -
Total current liabilities 988 1,156
Total liabilities 2,988 3,156
Total liabilities and equity 19,557 8,820

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement to
present its own income statement and statement of comprehensive income. The Company’s profit for the year

was US$10.9m {2021: US$1.0m).

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Directors and are signed on their

behalf by:

Rashid Wally
Chairman
16 August 2023

Mark Hurst

¥

Group Chief Executive Dfficer
16 August 2023



tast, 2t hented and s sabsidiar, Lraertakiags

Anrad’ Repars and Fnancdl Siate »ants for the vy anded 12 Decemoer 20022

Parent company statement of changes in equity

o

Share Share Treasury Retained Equity
Capital premium shares earnings  Reserve Total equity
US$'000  USS'000 us$' 000 USS$'000 USS000 uss’000
Balance at 31 December 2020 192,677 215,050 (288)  ({416,360) 11,695 2,174
Warrants exercised 53 1,588 - - 1,641
EBT Trust dissolved . 288 (288) -
Transaction with owners 53 1,588 288 (288) - 1,641
Profit for the year - - - 1,042 - 1,042
Capital contributions - - - 807 807
Balance at 31 December 2021 192,130 216,638 - (415,606) 12,502 5,664
Profit for the year - 10,905 - 10,905
{Capital contributions N B
Balance at 31 December 2022 192,130 216,638 - {404,701} 12,502 16,569
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Notes to the parent company financial statements
1. Accounting policies

fastjet Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in the UK.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework (“FRS 101”). In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition,
measurement and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards {“IFRS"), but makes
amendments where necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where
advantage of the FRS 101 disciosure exemptions have been taken.

Under s408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit
and loss account.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the
following disclosures:

= A Cash Flow Statement and related notes;

* Comparative period reconciliations for share capital, tangible and intangible assets;
* Disclosures in respect of capital management;

=  The effects of new but not yet effective IFRS’s; and

= Disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management Personnel.

As the consolidated financial statements include the equivatent disclosures, the Company has also taken the
exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures;

= IFRS 2 Share Based Payments in respect of group settled share-based payments;

*  Disciosures required by IFRS 5 Non - current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations in
respect of the cash flows of discontinued operations; and

* Certain disclosure required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7
Financial Instrument Disclosures.

The accounting policies of the Company are the same with that of Group except for the ones listed below. The
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.
Judgements made by the Directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on
the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are
discussed in Note 2.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise of investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other
debtors, cash and cash equivalents, ioans and borrowings, and trade and other creditors.

The fair values of all financial assets and financial liabilities are equal to their carrying amounts.
Investments
Investments are included at cost less amounts written off.

Equity reserve
This represents the amounts previously loaned by fastjet Limited to subsidiaries fastjet Africa, fastjet
Mozambique and fastjet Zambia, which has now been converted to a capital contribution.
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

2. Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period-or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods,

Estimates made by management in the application of adopted IFRS that have significant effect on the financial
statements with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in the following notes:

* Impairment of intangible assets (Note 5). Intangible assets comprise of the fastjet brand which was
acquired at US$2.5m and had an indefinite useful life. Impairment of the fastjet brand is assessed
annually making use of the Company’s forecasts on future brand licence fees to fastjet branded airline
subsidiaries, on a discounted cash flow method. There are a number of sensitivities on the forecasts that
support the value of the intangible assets. On 31 December 2022, management decided to do a reversal
of prior year impairment ioss on the fastjet Limited brand of US$1,2m, after an assessment concluded
that the factors leading to the impairment loss no longer exist. The recoverable amount of the fastjet
Limited brand has been calculated with reference to its value in use based on brand licensing fees
chargeable to fastjet branded airline operations.

* Impairment of capital contributed into fastjet Africa, fastjet Mozambique and fastjet Zambia amounting
to US$12.5m (2021:US8$12.5m) (Note 4). This was after a review concluded that these subsidiaries by
themselves are unable to generate profitability to support the amounts invested in them by fastjet
Limited. Accerdingly, these amounts were fully impaired.

* In the current year, no impairment was provided for the loan with Parrot Aviation Proprietary Limited
Note 6. The amount of the loanis directly linked to the valuation of FedAir of which the valuations involved
an estimation of future cashflows with several sensitivities. Any movement in these sensitives will result
in a change in the assessment of the repayment of the toan.

ludgements made by management in the application of adopted IFRS that have significant effect on the financial
statements. These include:

* the determination of going concern shown in the consoligated financial statements above on page 59.
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

3. Employees

—
.

The average number of staff (including Directors) employed by the

fastjet Limited during the year amounted to:

Year ended
31 December 2022

Year ended
31 December 2021

Administration and management 4 3

4 3

The aggregate payroll costs (including Directors): Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

us$'000 LSS'000

Salaries and wages 2,585 671

Social security costs - 30

Total 2,585 701
Payroll costs are disclosed in:

Administration costs 2,585 701

Total 2,585 701

The aggregate remuneration of the Directors in the year was: Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

US$’000 Us$’000

Salaries and wages 384 374

Directors’ fees 96 104

Bonuses 337 25

Professional fees 100 -

917 503

The remuneration of the highest paid Director was US5462k (2021: US5248k). The remuneration of the Directors

can be found on page 39.
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

4. Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings were as follows: Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
54’000 UsS$'000

Investment in Parrot® 8,746 -

Impairment - -

Closing balance 8,746 -

Capital contributed 2

Opening balance 12,502 11,695

Capital contributions to subsidiaries - 807

Disposal of investment in fastjet Zambia® (1,836)

Closing balance 10,666 12,502

Impairment

Opening balance 12,502 11,695

Impairment for the year - 807

Disposal of investment in fastjet Zambia® {1,836)

Closing balance 10,666 12,502

Balance at 31 December 8,746 -

1 On 23 December 2022 the Company converted US$S8.7m (R150m) loan to Parrot Limited inte Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares. Those shares are redeemable at the option of Parrot and attract 8% interest

payabie yearly in arrears

2 As at 31 December 2021, fastjet Limited had a total amount of US$12.5m (2021:US512.5m) receivable from its
subsidiaries {fastjet Mozambigue US$7.4m, fastjet Africa US$2.9m, fastjet Zambia US$S1.8m and EBT Trust
US$0.4m). These amounts were converted into contributed capital to fastjet Africa, fastjet Mozambique, fastjet
Zambia and EBT Trust. This investment was impaired at year end after a review concluded that these subsidiaries

by themselves are unabie to generate profitahility to support the amounts invested in them by fastjet Limited.

Accordingly, these amounts were fully impaired at 31 December 2021.

2 During the year, the Group closed fastjet Zambia, this resulted in the writing off of all the capital that had been

contributed into this subsidiary.
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5. Intangible assets

Brands Software and Total
Uss’000 other Uss$’000
LSS’'000

Cost
At 31 December 2020 2,500 781 3,281
Additions - _
Disposals - - -
At 31 December 2021 2,500 781 3,281
Additions - -
Disposals - - -
At 31 December 2022 2,500 781 3,281
Amortisation and impairment charges
At 31 December 2020 1,540 781 2,321
Impairment for the year - - -
Disposals - - -
At 31 December 2021 1,540 781 2,321
impairment reversal {1,172} {1,172)
Disposals - - -
At 31 December 2022 3638 781 1,149
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 960 - 960
At 31 December 2022 2,132 - 2,132

Indefinite life intangible assets considered significant in comparison to the Company’s total carrying amount of
such assets have been allocated to cash generating units or groups of cash generating units as follows:

Year ended Year ended

Indefinite fife Intangible asset 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Uss$‘000 Uss$°00a

fastjet Limited brand 2,500 2,500
Less: cumulative impairment (1,540} (1,540)
Add: impairment reversal 1,172 -
2,132 960
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fastjet Limited brand:

On 31 December 2022, management decided to do a reversa! of prior year impairment loss on the fastjet Limited
brand, after an assessment concluded that the factors leading to the impairment loss no longer exist. The
recoverable amount of the fastjet Limited brand has been calculated with reference to its value in use based on
brand licensing fees chargeable to fastjet branded airline operations. The key assumptions of this calculation are

shown below::

Year ended Year ended
Key Assumptions 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Period in which management forecasts are based 2023-2027 2022-2025
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 0% 2.5%
Discount rate 14.91% 15.00%

The recoverable amount of the Cash Generating Units {CGUs) to which this brand asset is allocated have been
measured based on value in use, using a discounted cash flow method. Cash flow projections are based on the
business plan approved by the Board covering a four-year period. Cash flows beyond the two-year period are

projected to increase in line with the long-term growth rate mentioned above.

The indefinite life intangible asset is allocated to the following Cash Generating Units (“CGU"):

Year ended

Cash Generating Unit
ash Generating tnt 31 December 2022

Year ended
31 December 2021

fastjet Zimbabwe 2,132

960

Total 2,132

960

Sensitivity Analysis:

If the inputs to the valuation model above were 1% higher / lower, while all other variables were held constant,

the carrying amount of the brand would not change at present.
1% decrease in the growth rate

1% increase in the discount rate

(US$153,343)

(US$140,761)
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6. Intercompany loans receivahle

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Us5'000 USs$’'000

Loan to Parrat! 2,505 9,120

Provision far impairment - (4,120)

2,505 5,000

fastjet Zimbabwe Aircraft loan? 14,422 13,904
Provision for impairment (11,122 (13,904) .

Total - -

Other amounts receivable from Group undertakings® 46,372 43,780

Provision for impairment (43,780)

(46,372)

Total

!fastjet Limited entered inte a call option (“The Option”) agreement to acquire 100% of the shares of federat
Airlines for a total consideration of US$9.6m with US$4.0m payable through a cash loan to the existing
shareholders and the rest paid in shares. Subsequently the US$4.0m cash loan was reduced to US$3.2m following
the distribution of a dividend to the existing shareholders of FedAir. fastjet Limited transferred its FedAir call
option asset together with US$4.0m cash option to Parrot Aviation Proprietary Limited (“Parrot”) for a loan
receivable of US59.6m. On 31 December 2022, fastjet converted the amount receivable from Parrot in respect
of this loan and other loan amounts, accumulated over the years to investment in preference share of Parrot for
an amount of US48.7m (R150m). The balance of the loan amount of US$2.5m was not impaired as this amount
is recoverable.

?The Aircraft loan is unsecured and bears interest at 4.5% per annum.

3The amounts receivable from Group undertakings are unsecured and interest free. These are fully provided for
as shown above.

7. Trade and other receivables

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

us$’000 Uss’'000

Trade receivables - 15
VAT debtor 13 30
Other debtors 4 3
Prepayments 7 -

24 48
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8. Trade and other payables

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

us$’000 US5'000

Accruals 760 585
Trade payables 207 57
Other payables 21 12
988 654

9. Share capital and Share premium

Refer to Note 20 in the consclidated financial statements,

10. Loans and borrowings

Refer to Note 18 in the consolidated financial statements.

11. Related party transactions

Refer to Note 25 in the Consolidated financial statements.

12, Subsidiaries

Refer to Note 21 in the Consolidated financial statements.

13. Post balance sheet events

Refer to Note 26 in the Consoclidated financial statements.
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Other Information

ACM
Aircraft Utilisation

Aircraft Utilisation {(peak month)

Aircraft Utilisation (Year-end)

AOC
ASL
AsSP

Available seat kilometres (ASK)

BASA

Block hours

CAA
cGuU
Cost per ASK

Cost per ASK excluding fuel

EBITDA

EBITDAR

5% Freedom

FAM

FedAir

Glossary of Key Terms

Aircraft, maintenance, insurance, and crew
Average number of block hours per day per aircraft

Average number of block hours per day per aircraft
being the highest menth

Average number of block hours per day per aircraft
at year-end

Air Operator Certificate
Air Service Licence
Air Service Permit

Seats flown multiplied by the number of kilometres
flown

Bilateral Air Service Agreement

Hours of service for aircraft, being the time that the
aircraft leaves the terminal at the departure airport
to the time of arrival at the destination airport

Civil Aviation Authority

Cash generating unit

Revenue less profit before tax, divided by ASK

Revenue less profit before tax less Fuel costs,
divided by ASK

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortisation

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation,
Amortisation and Rent

Fifth Freedom of The Air - the right or privilege, in
respect of scheduled international air services,
granted by one State tc another State to put down
and to take on, in the territory of the first State,
traffic coming from or destined to a third State (also
known as a Fifth Freedom Right).

fastjet Mozambique Limitada

federal Airlines (Proprietary) Limited
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Other Information
FOP
ICAO

Load Factor

Passenger segments

PTY
Revenue
' Revenue per ASK
Revenue per passenger
SAHL
SAM
SATF
55CG
uss$

IWL

o3l Tegeroar 2502

Flight Operator’s Permit
International Civil Aviation Organisation

Number of passenger segments as a percentage of
number of seats flown

Number of ticketed seats flown. Ticketed seats
comprise seats sold to passengers {Including no-
shows) per segment {excluding infants)

Solenta Aviation {Proprietary) Limited (South Africa)
The sum of seat revenue and non-seat revenue
Revenue divided tiy ASK

Revenue divided by number of passenger segments
Solenta Aviation Holdings Limited (Malta)

Solenta Aviation Mozambique Limitada

Satfin Limited (isle of Man}

Sub-Sahara Capital Group Limited

United States of America dollars

Zimbabwean dollar
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Registered Number

Directors

Company Secretary

Registered Office

Registrars

Auditors

Solicitors

Share Trading Piatform

Company details and advisors

5701801

Rashid Wally {(Non-Executive Chairman)
Mark Hurst (Group Chief Executive Officer)
Kris Jaganah {Group Chief Financial Officer)
Robert Burnham (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Ben Harber
Shakespeare Martineau
60 Gracechurch Street
London

EC3V OHR

DX 700 London City

5% Floor

60 Gracechurch Street
Londen

EC3V OHR

DX 700 London City

Neville Registrars Limited
Neville House

Steelpark Road
Halesowen

B62 8HD

BDO LLP

2 City Place
Beehive Ring Road
Gatwick

West Sussex

RH6 OPA

Charles Russell Speechlys {CRS)
S Fleet Place

London

EC4M 7RD

Asset Match UK

1 Bow Lane

London

ECAM 9 EE
www.assetmatch.com
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